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We aim at seeing our mills to be a model manufacturing unit producing high quality yarn 
by complying with the requirements of Quality management System and continuously 
imporving its effectiveness for total coustomers’ satisfaction. We wish to play a leading 
role in the spinning sector by keeping a substantial presence in the export and local 
markets. 
 

MISSION STATMENT  
 

1. To install state of the art machinery and to acquire sophisticated process 
technology to achieve maximum growth in a competitive quality environment. 

 
2. To make strenuous efforts to enchance profitiablity of the mills ensuring a fair 

return to the investors, shareholders and employees of the company. 
 
3. To exercise maximum care for improvement of quality of our products by 

employing a team of highly skilled techinicians and professional managers. 
 

4. To strive hard to explore new customers for the sale of our products in export and 
local markets. 
 

5. To improve customers’ satisfaction level by adhering strictly to quality 
requirements of our customers in local and export markets and by improving 
communications with customers for receiving prompt feed backs about quality of 
our products. 

 
6. To attend and prompt resolution of customers’ quality complaints by taking 

timely corrective measures. 
 

7. To improve logistic facilities for our customers dispatch programme and issue all 
shipments / delivery documents well in time. 
 

8. To make comprehensive arrangements for the training of our workers / 
technicians. 
 

9. To promote team work, sense of transparency, creativity in our professionals and 
technical people 
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Shahzad Textile Mills Limited, has laid down the following code of conduct, the obeservance 
of which is compulsory for all the directors and staff members of the company in the 
conduct of company’s business in order to protect and safeguard the reputation and integrity 
of the company at all levels of its operations. Any contravention of these ethics is regarded 
as misconduct. The company will ensure that all the executives and subordinate staff 
members are fully aware of these standards and principles.  

1. Conflict of interest  
 
All staff member are expected not to engage ina nay activity which can cause confilict 
between their personal interests and company’s interests, such as: 
 

a)  In effecting the purchases for the company and selling its products the directors and the staff 
members are forbidden from holding any personal interest in any organization supplying 
goods or services to the company or buying its products. 
 

b)  The staff members should not engage in any outside business while serving the company. 
 

c)  Staff members are not permitted to conduct personal business in company’s premises or use 
company’s facilities for the same. 
 

d)  If a staff member has direct or indirect relationship with an outside organization dealing with 
the company he must disclose the same to the management. 

 
2. Confidentiality 

 
All staff members are required not to divulge any secrets / informations of the company to 
any outsider even after leaving the service of the company unless it is so required by a 
court of law. During the course of service in the company they should not disseminate any 
information relating to business secrets of the company without the consent of 
management.  
 

3. kickbacks 
 
All staff members are strictly forbidden not to accept any favor, gifts or kickbacks from 
any organization dealing with the company. In case if such a favor is considered, in the 
interest of the company, the same should be disclosed clearly to the management. 

 
4. Proper Books of Account 

 
All funds, receipts and disbursements should be properly recorded in the books of accounts 
of the company. No false or fictitious entries should be made or misleading statement 
pertaining to the company or its operations should be issued. All agreements with agents, 
dealers and consultants should be made in writing supported with required evidence. 
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5. Relationship with government officials suppliers, agents etc. 
 
The dealings of the company with Government officials, suppliers, buyers, agents and 
consultants of the company should always be such that the integrity of the company and 
reputation is not damaged. Members having queries in connection with how to deal with 
these requirements should consult the management. 
 

6. Health and Safety 
 
Every staff member is required to take care of his health and safety and of those working 
with him. The management is responsible for keeping its staff members insured as per 
government rules and regulations.  
 

7. Environment 
 
To preserve and protect the environment all staff members are required to operate the 
company’s facilities and processes so as to ensure maximum safety of the adjoining 
communities, and strive continuously to improve enviornmental awareness and 
protections. 
 

8. Alcohol, Drugs 
 
All types of gambling and betting at the company’s work places are strictly forbidden. 
Also bringing alcohols or drugs inside the work places are not allowed. If any staff 
member, not abiding by these prohibitions will attract disciplinary as well as penal action. 
 

9. Coordination among staff members to maintain discipline 
 
All staff members will work in close coordination with their co-workers, seniors and 
colleagues. Every member will cooperate with other members so that the company’s work 
could be carried out effectively and efficiently. All cases of non-cooperation among staff 
members should be reported to the management for necessary and suitable action. Strict 
disciplinary action will be taken against those staff members who violate the rules and 
regulations of the company. 
 

10. Workplace harassment 
 
All staff members will be provided an environment that is free from  harassment and in 
which all employees are equally respected. Work place harassment means any action that 
creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive environment which may include sexual 
harassment, disparaging remarks based on gender, religious, race or ethnicity. 
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Sales 3,692,132            4,211,486            4,997,603             

Gross Profit 184,755               253,651               398,645                

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 21,632                 48,567                 285,627                

Provision for tax                (34,989)                (12,789)                 (67,928)                  

Profit/(Loss) after taxation                                 (13,357)                 35,778                  217,699                 

Total Assets                       2,630,358             2,598,113             2,639,987              

Current liabilities                             591,876                578,450                600,823                 

                      2,038,482             2,019,663             2,039,164              

Represented By :

Equity & Surplus                       1,714,359             1,703,304             1,693,873              

Long Term Loans & leases                                 -                        -                        35,224                   

Deferred Liablities                             324,123                316,359                310,067                 

           

5,464,278            

267,586               

101,183               

(28,983)                

72,200 

3,430,522 

969,147 

2,461,375 

2,113,308 

58,036 

290,030 

2,461,375            

4,511,169            

242,998               

64,031                 

(29,316) 

34,715 

2,908,801 

764,960 

2,143,841 

1,752,012 

98,777 

293,053 

2,143,841 2,038,482             2,019,663             2,039,164              

Rupees In Thousands
2013

4,977,944            

480,705               

258,799               

8,889                   

267,688 

2,460,816 

635,105 

1,825,711 

1,497,869 

77,014 

250,828 

1,825,711 
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The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
 

 1. The total numbers of directors are seven (07) as per the following; 
 

a) Male: Seven (07) 

b) Female:     Nil 

 2. The composition of board is as follows:  
a) Independent Directors   One (01) 

Syed Raza Ali Bokhari 

b) Other Non-Executive Director  Four (04) 

Mian Parvez Aslam 
Mr. Irfan Aslam 
Mr. Ahsan Ahamd Khan 
Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi  

c) Executive Directors   Two (02) 

Mr. Imran Aslam 
Mr. Humayun Bakht 
 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed 
  companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies 
where applicable). 

 
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 

taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 
 

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates 
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

 
6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 

taken by board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations. 

 
7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.  

 
8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors 

in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 

Name of Company: Shahzad Textile Mills Limited 

Year Ending:     30th June, 2018 
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9. The board has arranged Directors’ Training Program for the following; 
 
Three Directors of the Company namely Mian Parvez Aslam, Mr. Imran Aslam, and Mr. Irfan Aslam 
are exempted from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program. 
 
Three Directors Mr. Humayun Bakht, Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi and Mr. Ahsan Ahmad Khan 
obtained the Certificates under Directors’ Training Program (DTP). 

 
10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 

including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations. 

 
11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board. 

 
12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below; 

 
a) Audit Committee 

• Syed Raza Ali Bokhari  Chairman 

• Mr. Irfan Aslam    Member 

• Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi  Member 

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 

• Syed Raza Ali Bokhari   Chairman 

• Mr. Imran Aslam    Member 

• Mr. Ahsan Ahmad Khan    Member 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 

committee for compliance. 
 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committee were as per following; 
 

a) Audit Committee 
 
The audit committee of the company is meeting every quarter of the financial year prior to the 
approval of interim results of the company by its board of directors and after completion of 
external audit and if requested by the external auditors or the head of internal audit. 
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 
  
The Committee shall meet at least once in a financial year and may meet more often if requested 
by a member of the board, or committee itself or the chief executive officer.  
 

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function which was duly reviewed and ratified by the 
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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Lahore             
Dated:  26th  September, 2018         

IMRAN ASLAM
Chief Executive Officer

  

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of 
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

 
18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

IRFAN ASLAM
DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE
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Lahore     HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO. 
Dated:  September 26, 2018    Chartered Accountants 
 
     (Engagement Partner: Muhammad Nasir Muneer) 

 
 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations’’) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Shahzad Textile Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with 
the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.  
 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of 
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Regulations. 
 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 
 
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 
208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and 
determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related 
party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material 
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 
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By order of the Board

 
 
Place: Lahore      (HASSAN-UD-DIN ANSARI) 
Dated: September 26, 2018            Company Secretary 
 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth (40th) Annual General Meeting of the 
Shareholders of SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED will be held at Company’s 
Registered Office, 19-A, Off. Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg-V, Lahore on Saturday, October 
27, 2018 at 12:30 p.m. to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Chairman’s Review Report, the Reports of Directors 

and Auditors together with Audited Annual Separate and Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018. 
 

2. To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, the payment of final cash 
dividend of Re. 1.00 per share (i.e., @10.0%) for the year ended 30 June 2018. 

 
3.  To appoint Company’s auditors and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby 

notified that the Audit Committee and the Board of directors have recommended the 
name of retiring auditors M/s Horwath Hussain Chaudhury & Co.Chartered Accountants 
for appointment as auditors of the Company. 

 
SPECIAL BUSNIESS 
 

1. To consider and, if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution 
with or without modification for ratification of Transactions with Related Parties as 
per Note No. 37 of Audited Accounts 2018. 
 
RESOLVED that the related party transactions carried out by the Company with 
related parties during the year ended June 30, 2018 be and hereby approved. 
 

 RESOLVED FURTHER that Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to approve transactions to be conducted with the Related Parties in the 
normal course of business during the year ending June 30, 2019 and till the date of 
next annual general meeting. 

2. To consider and if deemed fit to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution 
with or without modification for the transmission of the annual audited accounts, 
notices of general meetings and other information contained therein of the Company 
either through CD/DVD/USB in terms of S.R.O 470(1) 2016 dated May 31, 2016. 
 
RESOLVED that consent and approval of the members of Shahzad Textile Mills 
Limited, (the “Company”) be and is hereby accorded for transmission of annual 
audited accounts, notices of general meetings and other information contained therein 
of the Company to the members for future years commencing from the year ended 
June 30, 2019 through CD or DVD or USB instead of transmitting the same in hard 
copies”  
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NOTES: 
 
1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 

2018 to October 27, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at 
Company’s Independent Share Registrar’s Office, Hameed Majeed Associates 
(Pvt.) Limited, H.M. House, 7- Bank Square, Lahore by the close of business on 
October 17, 2018, will be treated in time for the entitlement of dividend to the 
transferees and to attend the annual general meeting. 

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member 

as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall 
have the same rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the AGM as are 
available to the members. A Proxy must be a member of the Company. 

3. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under 
which it is signed or a notarial attested copy of the power of attorney must be 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time 
of the meeting. Proxy Forms, in English and Urdu languages, have been dispatched 
to the members along with the notice of AGM. 

4. Members who have deposited their shares into Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited (“CDC”) will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines 
as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

 
A. For Attending the Meeting 

 
a. In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their 

registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate 
his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or, original Passport at the 
time of attending the Meeting. 

b. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been 
provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting. 

 
B. For Appointing Proxies 

 
a. In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder and their 

registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the 
proxy form as per above requirements. 

b. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and 
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form. 

c. Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy 
shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

d. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the 
Meeting. 

e. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature shall be furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along 
with proxy form to the Company. 

 
5. CNIC/IBAN for E-Dividend Payment 

The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed 
companies that any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic 
mode directly into the bank account of designated by the entitled shareholders. 
Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the 
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Company’s Share Registrar at the address given herein above, electronic dividend 
mandate on E-Dividend Form provided in the annual report and also available on 
website of the Company. In the case of shares held in CDC, the same information 
should be provided to the CDS participants for updating and forwarding to the 
Company. In case of non-submission, all future dividend payments may be withheld. 
 

6. Zakat Declarations: 
The members of the Company are required to submit Declaration for Zakat 
exemption in terms of Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980. 
 

7. Circulations of Annual Reports through Email 
The shareholders who intends to receive the annual report including the notice of 
meeting through e-mail are requested to provide their written consent on the Standard 
Request Form provided in the annual report and also available on the Company’s 
website: www.shahzadtex.com. 
 

8. Tax Deductions from Filers and Non-Filers 
The deduction of income tax from dividend payments shall be made on the basis of 
filers and non-filers as follows: 
S.No Nature of Shareholders Rate of deduction 
1 Filers  15.0% 
2 Non- Filers  20.0% 

  
Tax deduction will be made on the basis of Active Tax Payers List provided on the 
website of Federal Board of Revenue.  
 
Members seeking exemption from deduction of tax on dividend payment or are 
eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid withholding 
tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence, as the case may be. 
 
The shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be 
dealt with separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be 
treated as either a Filer or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his 
shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be 
assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the deduction will be made 
accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint 
account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the 
Share Registrar of the Company latest by the AGM date. 

 
 
Folio/CDC Account 
No. 

Name of 
shareholder 

CNIC Shareholding Total 
shares 

Principal/joint 
shareholder 

 
9. Unclaimed Dividend and Bonus Shares 

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or 
did not collect their physical shares, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar 
M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, 7-Bank Square, Lahore, to 
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any. 

 
10. Video Conference Facility 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a 
city and holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the 
Company to provide the facility of video-link for participating in the AGM. The 
demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar at the address 
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given hereinabove at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting on the 
Standard Form provided in the annual report and also available on the company’s 
website: www.shahzadtex.com. 
 

11. Placement of Financial Statements 
The Company has placed a copy of the Notice of AGM, Annual Separate and 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 along with the 
Reports of Auditors and Directors www.shahzadtex.com. 

 
 
 
STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 
 
This statement sets out the material facts concerning special business to be transacted at the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 27, 2018. 
 
 
Ratification / approval of Related Party Transactions  
 
The Company carried out transactions as detailed in the below draft resolution with its related parties 
in the ordinary course of business under the authority of the special resolution of the members as 
approved by them during the last annual general meeting held on October 28, 2017. All these 
transactions were presented before the Board of Directors for their review and consideration as 
recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis. 
 
Since, the majority of the Company Directors were interested in the related party transactions carried 
out during the financial year ended June 30, 2018 with the related parties as mentioned in the below 
draft resolution, due to their common directorship and shareholding in these associated undertakings, 
therefore, these transactions have been placed before the members of the Company for their approval 
in the General Meeting. The transactions with all related parties are entered on arms’ length basis. 
 
The Directors are interested in this business to the extent of their respective directorships and 
/or shareholdings. 
 
Circulation of Annual Report through CD/DVD/USB 

  
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(1) 2016 
dated May 31, 2016, has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited 
Accounts (i.e. the annual balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor’s report and 
director’s report) to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses instead 
of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from shareholders in General 
Meeting. Accordingly, approval is hereby sought from members of the Company to comply 
with the requirements of said SRO vide an ordinary resolution. 
  
Subject to the approval of resolution in the AGM, the company will circulate its annual 
accounts in future through CD/DVD/USB. However, members will have the right to request 
hard copies free of cost at their registered addresses after submitting the Standard Request 
Form which shall be made available on Company website. While members who wish to 
receive hard copies for all future annual audited accounts shall also require to give their 
preference in writing. 
 
The directors of the Company have no direct or indirect interest in this agenda except to the 
extent of their respective directorships and /or shareholdings. 
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Lahore. 

Dated September 26, 2018       Mian Parvez Aslam  

          Chairman. 

I am pleased to present this report to the Shareholders of Shahzad Textile Mills Limited pertaining to 
the overall performance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in attaining Company’s              
objectives. 

The Committees of the Board had performed their duties and responsibilities diligently and              
contributed to the governance structure of the Company as per the best practices in light of the      
relevant legal requirements. The Audit Committee has focused on control of risks associated with the 
textile business. The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee has worked within the ambit of 
its term of reference and ensured that the HR policies regarding performance management, HR      
staffing, compensation and benefits are market driven and are aligned to the company’s                     
performance, stakeholders’ interests and the long-term success of the company.

The Company has developed a mechanism for the evaluation of performance of the Board of             
Directors and its Committees. During the year, a self-evaluation was carried out, as required. The 
purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness is 
measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company. 
For the financial year ended June 30, 2018, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness has 
been assessed as satisfactory. The overall assessment as satisfactory is based on an evaluation of 
integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formu-
lation of policies; monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource      
management; effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in         
carrying out the Board’s business.

On an overall basis, I believe that the strategic direction of the Company is clear and appropriate. 
Further, the processes adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and 
achievement of Company’s objectives are commendable and have helped tremendously in ensuring 
the smooth and efficient running of the Company’s business.

The Company is striving to further improve the working conditions of its employees to provide safe, 
healthy and comfortable working environment.

I wish to acknowledge the contributions of our employees, suppliers, customers, bankers and other 
stakeholders for their confidence and support.

We look forward to the next year with confidence and hope to meet the challenges ahead.
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On behalf of the Board, it is my great pleasure to present the 40th Directors’ Report accompanied 
by Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 along with 
Auditors’ Report thereon, which reflects the affairs of the Company. 
 
Financial and Operational Performance: 
 
The financial results of the Company are summarized below: 
 
          2018  2017 
              Rupees   Rupees     
Sales         4,511,169,297         
Gross Profit          267,585,555      242,997,  
Profit before taxation and share of associate       61,095,682       
Share of Net profit of Associate          40,087,570  36,953,173          
Profit before Taxation   101,183,252    64,030,969     
Taxation          (28,983,671) (29,316,329)   
Profit after Taxation            72,199,581      34,714,640        
 
By the grace of God, profit of the Company before taxation and share of Net Profit of associated 
undertaking increased to Rs. 61.096 million in the current year ended June 30, 2018 as 
compared to profit Rs. 27.078 million in the corresponding period of last year. Top line increase is 
recorded as Rs. 5,464 billion in the current year from Rs. 4,511 billion in the corresponding period 
of last year. However, gross profit to sales percentage decreased slightly from 5.39% to 4.90% 
due to increase in cost of raw materials and other manufacturing cost.  
 
This profit is not only attributable to business transactions but also includes reversal of provision 
of further tax Rs. 42,168,181/- created in tax year 2017 to meet the contingency of legal petition 
filed against imposition of this levy.  
 
 
GENERAL OVERVIEW  
Our economy is continuously facing strenuous times due to unstable    political circumstances.  
Our Cotton crop growth is   decreasing consecutively   and export sale is falling sharply day-by-
day. The Government does not pay attention to this aspect and     enhances the electricity and 
gas prices   without anticipating   its negative impact on the industry. Resultantly, sometimes it 
becomes very difficult for industrialist   to meet the export contracts made with the foreign buyers 
due to higher cost of the product. Pakistani Rupee also experienced a worst fall ever against US 
dollar reaching at the historic level of Rs.125-128 eroding 19% as compared to last year. 
 
The Federal Government, however, announced Textile Package 2017 to boost textile exports.  It  
includes   several relief measures, including widening of the scope of Duty Drawbacks, zero 
rating of sales tax on machinery imports, and raw-materials,  prompt  payment of sales tax 
refunds for textile sector  but high  energy prices will wipe out all   these incentives.  
                 
Earning  per Share  
 
Earning   per share of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 is Rs. 4.02 as compared 
Rs. 1.93 of previous year’s earning. 
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DIVIDEND AND BONUS  ISSUE  
The Board of Directors has proposed a 10% cash dividend     for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
The dividend recommended is subject to approval by the shares holders in the Annual General 
Meeting. 
 
 FUTURE OUTLOOK

 The Company maintained its sales momentum and exhibited a substantial increase of 21% in 
volume over the preceding financial year due to constant supply of energy to industrial sector and 
little improvement in local yarn rates.  As we discussed in the last Directors’ Report that 
management has imported 5 gas generators from Austria to replace the existing ones and also 
planned to overhaul two existing generators. Three generators were installed in the last year    
and two generators valuing Rs. 79,726,000/- are installed in the current year. Two existing 
generators are also completely overhauled costing                         Rs. 21, 780,600/-  These four  
generators have started functioning successfully in current year  efficiency of overhauled 
generators is  excellently improved which has  also  enhanced   the  production of energy.  This 
increase in production of electricity will help to reduce the energy cost and eventually 
enhancement in profit.    
The Management is always determined to give good results to the shareholders and takes all 
necessary steps, which go in favor of the company according to their intellectual perception. 
 
ISO 9001-2008 CERTIFICATION   
The Company trusts in sustainable quality of yarn to the complete satisfaction of its clients.  For 
this the Company has obtained the latest version of ISO 9001-2008 Certification, which is 
renewed every year after an extensive checking, and complete verification of its quality 
management system.  This quality certification enhances the trust of new customers and boosts 
up the confidence of old clients as well. 
 
 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UN-CERTAINTIES FACING THE COMPANY  
Despite the fact that the Company’s financial performance is better in the period under discussion 
but there are some risk factors, which may have an impact on the future performance of the 
Company. 
 
  RISK FACTORS 
 
A)   FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK  

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to 
transactions entered into foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign 
currency risk on trade debts, payables and revenues which are entered in a currency 
other than Pak Rupees. Majority of the revenue of the Company is in currencies other 
than Pak Rupees.  

B)    LIQUIDITY RISK 
 Liquidity risk reflects an enterprise's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The 

Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatch of the maturities of 
financial assets and liabilities. The Company follows an effective cash management and 
planning policy to ensure availability of funds and to take appropriate actions for new 
requirements.   
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C)    CREDIT RISK  
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date 
if counter-parties failed completely to perform as contracted. To reduce exposure to credit 
risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are 
applied to its customers. The Management also continuously monitors credit exposure 
towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful 
of recovery.  

 
D)    INTEREST RATE RISK 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate 
exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from bank, term deposits and 
deposits in profit and loss/saving accounts with banks and investments in mutual funds. 

 
CHANGES DURING FINANCIAL YEAR CONCERNING NATURE OF THE BUSINESS OF THE 
COMPANY OR OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT OPERATION 
 
No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning nature of the business of the 
Company. 
 
MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, 
PERFORMANCE AND POSITION OF THE COMPANY BUSINESS 
 
We are striving hard to give good results to the share holders. But in the present scenario where 
electricity cost has already been raised and cotton crop is deteriorating in the every coming year. 
Both these factors may affect the future production of yarn. China, the major importer of spun 
yarn,  has diverted its  concentration towards Bangladesh and Vietnam where  labour and 
electricity is available at   much cheaper rates  than Pakistan, therefore,  spun yarn is exported to 
China by these two countries at comparatively cheaper rates. In spite of these adversities our 
Management, with its untiring efforts,   is running the business in profit.   
 
IMPACT OF COMPANY BUSINESS ON THE ENVIRNOMENT 
 We are maintaining a fresh and pollution free system at our mills by using latest safety devices 
which sucks all the fluff and all other  injurious gains which damage the   health of the workers.   
 

 
 
 
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Board has the ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain adequate internal controls 
over our financial reporting. Our internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our external financial 
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. Due to inherent 
limitations of any internal control system, the Management acknowledges that there may be 
limitations as to the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting and therefore 
recognize that only reasonable assurance can be gained from any internal control system. The 
Company, however, maintains an effective internal control framework comprising of clear 
structures, authority limits and accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures for 
review processes. 
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RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS   
 
The transactions between the related parties were made at arm’s length prices determined in 
accordance with the comparable uncontrolled price method. The same are disclosed in the 
attached financial statements The related party transactions were approved by the Board on the 
recommendation of Audit Committee. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PROTECTIONS AGAINST HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE   
 The Company is determined to provide clean  working atmosphere and ensures that every 
employee is treated with respect  and dignity.  The Company is committed to encourage a 
positive professional work atmosphere that is essential for the professional growth of its staff.  
Harassment, therefore, has no place at Shahzad Textile Mills Limited.  As offender must be ready 
to confront disciplinary and corrective action ranging from a warning to termination of job if such 
situation arises.  
ANTI-CORRUPTION   
 We have provided corruption free environment to the workers.  It includes  all types of corruption  
including extortion and bribery. 
 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 The Company recognizes that the key to successful and sustainable business is to give back to 
the society from where we derive economic benefits.  We create value for our local community, 
employers and the government by providing a vast array of facilities to our employees, financial 
assistance to the families of our deceased employees, promoting a better work life balance 
amongst our employees, contributing regularly to the national exchequer as per law 

 
 
 
I)Health, Safety and Environment 

We work continuously to ensure that our employees work in safe and healthy working 
environment.  Besides, the Company is registered with Social Security and Employees 
Old Age Benefit Department of the Government and pay regular contribution for the 
health facility and  retirement benefits to the  workers of the company.   
 II)  Work-Life Balance  

 
In order to promote a healthy life balance we strictly observe working timing from 9.00am 
to 5.30pm.   This ensures that our employees have plenteous  time for recreational  
activities with their families and friends.  
 

III)   Business Ethics  
 

The Management is committed to conduct all business activities with integrity, honesty, 
and observance of  laws and regulations.  A Code of Conduct has been developed and 
approved by the Board.  
 

IV)   Contribution to the National Exchequer 
 

To meet our social obligations towards the development of the economy of the country, 
the Company has contributed Rs.49.732 million in the year 2017-18 into the Government 
Exchequer on  account of taxes, levies, excise duty, Income Tax and Sales Tax. 
Moreover , foreign exchange amount of USD 10.066  Million was also earned for the 
country from  export sales(yarn)  during financial year. 
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V)    Energy Savings 
 

The Management is watchfully   focusing  on energy saving.  There are many preventive 
measures adopted by fixing energy conserving devices to save the energy.  Awareness 
is also given to workers for energy saving so that unnecessary consumption of energy 
could be saved. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 
 
The composition of the Board of Directors is in compliance with the requirement of Listed 
Companies Code of Corporate Governance, Regulations 2017 applicable on a listed  company 
which is given below:  
 
Total Number of Directors: 
 
(a) Male - 7 
(b) Female - Exempted for current term 

 
Composition: 
 
i) Independent Directors 01-  
ii) Non-Executive Directors 04  
iii) Executive Directors 02-  

 
NAME OF THE DIRECTORS 
 
The names of the Directors as at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 
Mian Parvez Aslam 
Mr.Imran Aslam  
Mr.Irfan Aslam 
Syed Raza Ali Bokhari  
Humayun Bakht  
Mr. Ahsan Ahmad Khan 
Mr.Maqsood Shahid Najmi 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’  MEETINGS 
 
During the period under review, Nine   9) meetings of the Board of Directors were held from July 
01, 2017 to June 30, 2018. The attendance of the  Board members  were  as follows: 
 
Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attended 
  
Mian Parvez Aslam 9 
Mr. Imran Aslam  9 
Mr. Irfan Aslam 6 
Syed Raza Ali Bokhari 9 
Mr.Humayun Bakht 9 
Mr.Ahsan Ahmad khan  9 
Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi                            9 
  
AUDIT COMMITTEE  
The Board has formed  an Audit Committee which consists of the following directors: 
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Syed Raza Ali Bokhari          (Independent director)                                    Chairman   
Mr. Irfan Aslam                     (Non executive director)                                Member   
Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi   (Non executive director)                               Member    
The Audit Committee efficiently reviews the usefulness of prevailing internal control system and 
identically point out the loop holes therein. The Committee also recommends corrective measures 
to improve the implementation of internal control system. 
During the period under review five (5) meetings of Audit Committee of the Company were  held 
from July 01, 2017 to June 30, 2018 and attendance of Audit Committee  
members was as follows:  
Name of Member     No. of Meetings Attended 
Syed Raza Ali Bokhari       Five (5) 
Mr.Irfan Aslam                                                                               Five (5) 
Mr.Maqsood Shahid Najmi                 Five (5) 
  HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  (HR & R)  
 In Compliance with the  Regulations of  2017 the Board of Directors has formed a Human 
Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR & R Committee) comprising three Directors named 
below. The HR & R Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in helping the 
Company’s Human Resource Department function efficiently. Further, the HR & R Committee will 
also assess and makes recommendations to ensure that the Company’s Human Resource 
policies are objectively associated with its overall business. 
 Syed Raza Ali Bokhari           Independent Director                    Chairman  
Mr. Imran Aslam           Executive Director   Member 
Mr. Ahsan Ahmad Khan        Non executive                Member  
                                             
Names of the members of the Committee Meetings Attended 
Syed Raza Ali Bokhari        Chairman   Two(2)

Two(2)
Two(2)

 
Mr.Imran Aslam        Member    
Mr.Ahsan Ahmad Khan                   Member    
 
 CORPORATE GOVERANCE 
 Statement of compliance as required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance), 2017 is annexed. Statement of compliance under the Companies Act, 2017 has not 
been notified. 
 
 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD 
COMMITTEES    
Complying with Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance, 2017, the Board has 
developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors and board 

committees. During the year a comprehensive questionnaire was circulated among all members 
of the board for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. The core area of focus 
covered included: 
 

• Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with vision and mission of the Company. 
• Strategy formulation for sustainable operation; 
• Measuring and monitoring of performance; and 
• Evaluation of Board’s Committees performance in relation to discharging their 

responsibilities set out in respective terms of reference. 
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For and on behalf of the Board

Lahore
Dated: 26th September, 2018

IMRAN ASLAM
Chief Executive Officer

Individual feedback was obtained and on the basis of that feedback the average rating of the 
performance of the board was found satisfactory. Improvement is an ongoing process and the 
board has identified the areas of improvement in line with the global best practices. 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
The remuneration policy for Board of Directors [Executive, Non-Executive & Independent 
Directors] has been prepared. The policy has been designed on the basis of standards in the 
market, and reflects demands to competencies & efforts in light of scope of their work and 
increase in responsibilities of the directors. The remuneration of the Executive Directors is 
approved by the Board. No director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. For information 
on remuneration of Executive Directors year 2017-18,  please refer notes to the financial 
statements. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors and 
independent directors except fee for attending the meetings. 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM 
The Company is fully compliant with the requirement of Directors Training Program. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS    
 
The Auditors M/s Horwath Hussain Chaudhry & Co. Chartered Accountants, will retire and are 
eligible for reappointment as auditors of  the Company for the next year. The Audit committee  
and the Board have endorsed their re-appointment for reconsideration of the members at the 
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. 
 
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING  
The pattern of shareholding as of 30 June, 2018 on the prescribed Form 34 is attached herewith. 
 
 
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken 
place between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
 
The Directors would like to thank to all of their stakeholders,  staff & workers , customers,  
bankers and suppliers of the Company for their dedication  displayed in the growth of the 
Company. The Directors feel pleasure in expressing appreciation for the continued interest and 
support of all the shareholders. We fervently hope that cooperation  with same spirit shall be 
extended from all backers in future.  

IRFAN ASLAM
DIRECTOR
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Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Shahzad Textile Mills Limited, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement 
of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the 
audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit, other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the Key Audit Matters: 

S. No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 
Preparation of the Financial Statements under the Companies Act, 2017 
1 The Companies Act, 2017 (the new 

Act) has replaced Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and the requirements 
of the new Act have been applied in 

We discussed this transition with the management 
and assessed: 
 
• Procedures adopted by the Company to identify 
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the preparation of annual financial 
statements of Shahzad Textile Mills 
Limited (the Company) for the first 
time for year ended June 30, 2018. 
The new Act forms an integral part of 
the financial reporting framework 
applicable in Pakistan. This transition 
from the Ordinance to the new Act has 
required significant changes in 
disclosure requirements of financial 
statements. Further, as required under 
the new Act, the Company has 
changed its accounting policy and has 
reclassified certain account balances as 
specified in note 5 and 46 to these 
financial statements.  
 
Owing to the significant impact on 
disclosure requirements, this transition 
from the Ordinance to the new Act is 
considered a key audit matter. 
 

the changes introduced by the new Act 
• Extent of change in disclosure requirements, 

change in accounting policy and reclassification 
of account balances 

• Changes made in the bookkeeping  system to 
account for the newly promulgated changes 
consistently  

• Adequacy of enhanced disclosures to be given 
in the annual financial statements in accordance 
with the applicable reporting framework    

 

Increased Inventory Levels 
2. The Company has significantly 

increased its inventory levels as at the 
reporting date as compared to the 
prior year. These balances are 
disclosed in Note 20 to these financial 
statements.  
 
Increased inventory level was 
considered to be a key audit matter as 
it is a material account balance and it 
associates with various risks such as 
obsolescence and possible impairment. 

We responded to the risks associated with increased 
inventory levels, by: 
  

• Observing inventory counts;   
• Reviewing entity’s costing methodologies 

for inventory valuation; 
• Reviewing entity’s cut-off procedures for 

inventory;  
• Evaluating the presentation and disclosure 

of inventories in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable reporting 
framework.  

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report 2018, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements 
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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LAHORE     HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated:   September 26, 2018    Chartered Accountants

      (Engagement Partner: Muhammad Nasir Muneer)

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.    

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017); 
 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the 
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) 
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 
 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and  
 

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of 
that Ordinance.  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad 
Nasir Muneer. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

 2018 2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees Rupees

(Restated) (Restated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized share capital:
40,000,000 (2017: 40,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10 each 400,000,000       400,000,000       400,000,000       

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 6 179,713,720       179,713,720       179,713,720       
Reserves 7 1,149,804,529    1,088,787,306    1,029,324,962    
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 8 783,789,762       483,510,877       505,320,397       

2,113,308,011    1,752,011,903    1,714,359,079    

Non Current Liabilities

Long term financing 9 58,036,100        98,776,500         -                    
Staff retirement benefits 10 117,208,249       91,186,667        93,332,207        
Deferred tax liability - net 11 172,822,200       201,866,183       230,790,948       

348,066,549       391,829,350       324,123,155       
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 359,213,897       263,158,418       228,721,312       
Unclaimed dividends 163,152             242,454             242,454             
Unpaid dividends 199,348             173,749             173,749             
Accrued mark up on short term borrowings 12,450,350        8,631,020          4,807,189          
Current portion of long term financing 9 40,740,400         40,740,400         -                    
Short term borrowings 13 488,605,485       406,846,544       320,590,584       
Provision for taxation - net 14 67,774,490         45,166,955        37,340,529         

969,147,122       764,959,540       591,875,817       

Contingencies and Commitments 15 -                    -                    -                    

3,430,521,682    2,908,800,793    2,630,358,051    

The annexed notes 1 - 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 16 1,907,740,469    1,684,984,281    
Long term investment 17 389,984,319       370,634,687       
Long term deposits 18 14,070,369        13,970,369        

2,311,795,157    2,069,589,337    
Current Assets

Stores and spares 19 59,294,042        71,792,058         
Stock in trade 20 656,653,138       478,373,868       
Trade debts 21 103,126,356       92,683,730         
Advances, trade deposits, prepayments 

and other receivables 22 122,365,318       51,054,738         
Short term investments 23 8,440,050          820,508             
Tax refunds due from the Government 24 64,053,211        84,146,787         
Cash and bank balances 25 104,794,410       60,339,767         

1,118,726,525    839,211,456       

3,430,521,682    2,908,800,793    

2016
Rupees

(Restated)

1,576,075,286    
344,014,924       
13,970,369        

1,934,060,579    

49,408,186        
363,390,459       
45,987,630         

77,380,795         
1,183,793          

70,795,771         
88,150,838        

696,297,472       

2,630,358,051    

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

Sales 
Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

- Selling and distribution costs
- Administrative expenses

Operating Profit

Finance cost
Other operating expenses
Other income 
Share of net profit of associate

Profit before Taxation 

Taxation

Net Profit for the Year

Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted

The annexed notes 1 - 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2018
Note Rupees

26 5,464,277,865           
27 (5,196,692,310)         

267,585,555             

28 (25,802,248)              
29 (130,276,738)            

(156,078,986)            

111,506,569             

30 (53,100,365)              
31 (41,753,202)              
32 44,442,680               
17 40,087,570               

(10,323,317)              

101,183,252             

33 (28,983,671)              

72,199,581               

36 4.02                         

2017
Rupees

4,511,169,297          
(4,268,171,506)         

242,997,791             

(23,905,588)              
(121,253,886)            

(145,159,474)            

97,838,317               

(35,920,133)              
(49,611,214)              
14,770,826               
36,953,173               

(33,807,348)              

64,030,969               

(29,316,329)              

34,714,640               

1.93                         
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

 
2018

Rupees

Net Profit for the Year 72,199,581            

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Experience adjustment on remeasurement of staff retirement
benefits of:

- The Company (16,263,853)           
Related tax impact 3,687,015              

(12,576,838)           

- Associated company (2,041,686)             
Related tax impact 306,253                 

(1,735,433)             

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss

Share in deficit on available for sale investments 
 of associated company (7,199,126)             

Related tax impact 1,079,869              

Effect of change in shareholding percentage in associated 
company - (reclassified to profit or loss) -                        

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 327,250,029           

Related tax impact (3,692,495)             
317,438,277           

Other comprehensive income for the year 303,126,006           

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 375,325,587           

The annexed notes 1 - 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2017
Rupees

(Restated)

34,714,640            

9,234,801              
(2,069,519)             
7,165,282              

(1,050,974)             
131,372                 

(919,602)                

(840,245)                
105,031                 

293,721                 

-                        
-                        

(441,493)                

5,804,187              

40,518,827            
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

2018
Rupees

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 151,051,086      

Income tax paid (58,621,729)      
Gratuity paid (24,695,661)      

Finance cost paid (41,232,805)      
Workers' (profit) participation fund paid (3,520,995)        

                  

(128,071,190)    
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Operating Activities 22,979,896       

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant and equipment purchased (7,579,080)        
Long term deposits (100,000)          
Capital work in progress (33,081,146)      
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 23,001,507       

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (17,758,719)      

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from associated company 16,240,000       
Dividends paid to shareholders (18,025,075)      
Long term financing (repaid) / obtained - net (40,740,400)      
Short term borrowings acquired - net 81,758,941       

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities 39,233,466       

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 44,454,643       

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 60,339,767       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 104,794,410      

The annexed notes 1 - 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

34

2017
Rupees

11,704,454       

(23,406,529)      
(27,508,323)      

(25,442,537)      
(1,184,115)        

                  

(77,541,504)      
(65,837,050)      

(27,705,932)      
-                   

(188,441,613)    
18,250,664       

(197,896,881)     

10,150,000       
-                   

139,516,900      
86,255,960       

235,922,860      

(27,811,071)      

88,150,838       

60,339,767       
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

 Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance as at June 30, 2016 as previously reported 179,713,720         5,796,000             1,023,528,962       -                      1,209,038,682       

Impact of re-statement - note 5 -                      -                      -                      505,320,397         505,320,397         

Balance as at June 30, 2016 as restated 179,713,720      5,796,000           1,023,528,962   505,320,397      1,714,359,079   

Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2017 -                      -                      34,714,640           -                      34,714,640           

Other comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2017 -                      -                      5,804,187             -                      5,804,187             

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment on incremental
depreciation charged in current year (net of
deferred tax) -                      -                      15,431,522           (15,431,522)          -                      

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment realized on disposal -                      -                      1,804,186             (1,804,186)            -                      

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment related to export -                      -                      -                      (4,573,812)            (4,573,812)            

Share in realized surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment of associate
(net of deferred tax) -                      -                      1,707,809             -                      1,707,809             

Balance as at June 30, 2017 as restated 179,713,720      5,796,000           1,082,991,306   483,510,877      1,752,011,903   

Balance as at June 30, 2017 as previously reported 179,713,720         5,796,000             1,082,991,306       -                      1,268,501,026       

Impact of restatement -                      -                      -                      483,510,877         483,510,877         

Balance as at June 30, 2017 as restated 179,713,720      5,796,000           1,082,991,306   483,510,877      1,752,011,903   

Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2018 -                      -                      72,199,581           -                      72,199,581           

Other comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2018 -                      -                      (20,431,528)          323,557,534          303,126,006         

Final dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2017 (17,971,372)          -                      (17,971,372)          

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment on incremental
depreciation charged in current year (net of
deferred tax) -                      -                      13,069,861           (13,069,861)          -                      

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment realized on disposal -                      -                      9,407,807             (9,407,807)            -                      

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment related to export -                      -                      -                      (3,149,085)            (3,149,085)            

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment related to rate change -                      -                      -                      2,348,104             2,348,104             

Share in realized surplus on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of associate
(net of deferred tax) -                      -                      3,926,406             -                      3,926,406             

Share in realized surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment of associate
(net of deferred tax) -                      -                      816,468                -                      816,468                

Balance as at June 30, 2018 179,713,720         5,796,000             1,144,008,529       783,789,762         2,113,308,011       

The annexed notes 1 - 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Share Capital Share Premium
Unappropriated 

Profits
Total

Revaluation 
Surplus
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Note 1
The Company and its Operations

Note 2
Summary of Significant Events and Transactions in the Current Reporting Period

2.1

2.2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period:

-
-
-

- Increase in short term borrowings 
- Addition in property, plant and equipment
- Increase in revenue as compared to last year
- Adjustment of current tax expense arising from tax credits of prior year 

Note 3
Basis of Preparation

3.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

3.2 Basis of measurement

Staff retirement benefits Note 10 (Stated at Present value)

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017  have been followed.

Shahzad Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 24, 1978 as a Public Limited Company under the
Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is
domiciled in Pakistan and principle business of the Company is to manufacture and deal in all types of yarn. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except to the extent of following: 

The information on geographical location and addresses of the Company's business units including plants is as under:

- The Company's registered office is situated at 19-A, Off Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg - V, Lahore
- Unit 1,3 & 4 is situated at 34th Km, Lahore Sheikupura Road, Sheikupura
- Unit 2 is situated at 7th Km, Sheikupura Faisalabad Road, Sheikupura

With the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017, certain prescribed changes have been made in the presentation and the relevant
amounts reported for the previous years are restated. This is explained in Note 5 and Note 46.

Reclassification of revaluation surplus in equity as per Companies Act, 2017
Reclassification of unclaimed dividend as per Companies Act, 2017
Revaluation carried as on June 30, 2018 and revaluation surplus on property, plant and                     
equipment created during the year. Revaluation surplus arises as on June 30, 2018.

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Certain property, plant and equipment Note 16
Long term investment Note 17 (Stated at Equity method)
Investments in quoted companies Note 23 (Stated at Fair value)

(Stated at Revalued amount)

2018
Impact in Rupees

783,789,762           
163,152                 

327,250,029           

81,758,941             
115,818,568           
953,108,568           
11,437,856             
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Note 3, Basis of Preparation - Contd…

3.3 Functional and presentational currency

3.4 Use of estimates and judgments

3.4.1 Property, plant and equipment

3.4.2 Doubtful receivables

3.4.3 Staff retirement benefits

3.4.4 Inventories

3.4.5 Taxation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on the historical experience, as well
as expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. 

Significant management estimates in these financial statements relate to the useful life and residual values of property, plant and
equipment; provisions for doubtful receivables; provisions for defined benefit plans, slow moving and obsolete inventory, and taxation.

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated. 

The Company reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in the management's estimates 
might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation
charge and impairment.

The Company reports its trade and other receivables after deducting appropriate provisions for doubtful receivables using its prudence
and experience. This estimate is judgment based. Recoveries of amounts already provided and / or the need of further provisioning
cannot be determined with precision.

The Company has recorded its employees' retirement benefits at fair value using actuarial assumptions regarding increase in salaries
in subsequent years, remaining working lives of employees and an estimate of discount rates. Change in actuarial assumptions over
the period of time may affect the fair value of post-employment benefits payable and the charge for such liability accounted for in any
given period.

The Company has recorded its inventories using lower of cost and net realizable value. Valuation of this inventory is reviewed at
regular intervals for determination of possible impairment, if any. Any possible impairment may change the future value of inventories.

The basis and associated assumptions underlying the accounting estimates used in the preparation of annual financial statement of
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 have been consistent with previous years unless otherwise stated. 

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the appellate judicial authorities. Instances
where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the tax department at the assessment stage and the Company considers
that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.



SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED34

Annual Report 2018

3.5 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

3.5.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards  which became effective during the 
year

IAS 7 -  Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)
IAS 12 -  Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses (Amendments)

IFRS 12

3.5.2

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 16 Leases
IAS 23 Borrowing costs

-IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

-IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts '

The Company has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments which became effective for the current year:

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application; except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16.

Effective Date 
(Period beginning on or after)

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2021

January 1, 2018
July 1, 2018
July 1, 2018

January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been issued by the
IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in
Pakistan.

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB in December 2014

- Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Clarification of the
scope of the disclosure requirements in lFRS 12

Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and relevant to the Company, would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
(Period beginning on or after)

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

Note 3, Basis of Preparation - Contd…
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Note 4
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

4.1 Provisions

4.2 Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefits plan

4.3 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.4 Trade and other payables

Income tax on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income except to the extent that relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in
equity.

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws of taxation. All
tax credits and tax rebates are taken into account in calculating this charge. However, in case of taxable loss for the year, income tax
expense is recognized on the basis of minimum tax liability on turnover of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
income tax law.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

Actuarial gains / (losses) arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit plan are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are charged to income
immediately. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering its permanent employees. Employees are eligible for benefits under the
gratuity scheme after completion of one year of continuous service. The benefit is calculated on the basis of the number of completed
years of service and last drawn gross salary.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which assets may be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid or given in
future for goods and services received or to be delivered or for any other amount, whether or not billed to the Company. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is utilized or the
liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or have been notified at the reporting date for subsequent
enactments.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent of probable future taxable
profit available that will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Note 4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Contd…

4.5 Contingent liabilities

4.6 Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Capital work-in-progress

4.7 Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment is impaired. If such
indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts
and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate
the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Impairment loss is recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where conditions giving rise to impairment are reversed
subsequently, the effect of the impairment charge is also reversed as a credit to the statement of profit or loss. Reversal of impairment 
loss is restricted to the original cost of asset. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. 

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gain
or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, if any, is shown in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability is also disclosed when there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment loss, if
any, except freehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Cost of property, plant and equipment consists of historical cost,
borrowing cost pertaining to the construction and erection period and directly attributable cost of bringing assets to their working
condition.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In the absence of any information about the
fair value of a cash-generating unit, the recoverable amount is deemed to be the value in use. 

A Contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence is confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

The management reviews market value of revalued assets at each balance sheet date to ascertain whether the fair value of revalued
assets has differed materially from the carrying value of revalued assets, thus necessitating further revaluation. Latest revaluation of
land, building, plant and machinery and power house is carried out by an independent valuer as at June 30, 2018.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided for using the reducing balance method at the rates specified in Note
16 and is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is
available for use up to the month in which the asset is disposed off. 
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Note 4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Contd…

4.8 Investment in associate

4.9 Stores and spares

4.10 Stock in trade

Raw and packing materials - Average cost 
Material in transit - Cost comprising Invoice value plus incidental charges
Work in process - Estimated average manufacturing cost
Finished goods - Average manufacturing cost
Wastes - Net realizable value

4.11 Trade debts and other receivables

4.12 Cash and cash equivalents

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value; whilst items considered obsolete are written down. Cost of
items in transit comprises invoice value plus incidental charges paid thereon.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

Trade debts are recognized at fair value less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all the due amounts according to the
original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organization, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable has been
impaired. Debts, considered irrecoverable, are written off, as and when identified.

An associate is an entity in which the Company holds more than 20% voting power or over which the Company has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 

The operating results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the financial statements using the equity method. This
method is applied from the date when significant influence is established until the date when the significant influence ceases. The
Company's share of income and expenses of associates are recognized based upon their latest audited financial statements after
realigning their accounting policies, if required. 

Investments in associates, not accounted for under the equity method are classified as "Available for Sale".

Manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods comprises cost of material, labor and appropriately allocated to
manufacturing overheads. Net realizable value signifies estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less necessary costs
to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, these comprise cash in hand, cash at bank
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

The share of losses of the associate are recognized to the extent of carrying value/cost of investment. Further losses are recognized
only when the Company has made payments on behalf of the associate or has an obligation to make payments on its behalf.

Unrealized gains and losses, if any, arising from transactions with associates are eliminated under the equity method. The Company's
share of changes recognized directly in associate's statement of comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity are
recognized directly in the Company's statement of comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Note 4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Contd…

4.13 Financial instruments

4.13.1 Financial assets

At fair value through profit or loss

Loans and receivables

Held to maturity

Available-for-sale

Measurement criteria

The classification depends on the intended purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. The management determines the
classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition. The Company classifies its financial assets in the following
categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables comprise advances, deposits and other receivables in the balance sheet.

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized at trade date that is the date on which the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. 'Loans
and receivables' and 'held to maturity' investments are carried at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Fair values of quoted investments are based on current prices as prevailing on stock exchange. If the market for a financial asset is
not active (for unlisted securities), the Company measures the investments at cost less impairment in value, if any.

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and their transaction costs are
expensed in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. These are included in non-current assets unless the management intends to dispose off the investments within twelve
months from the balance sheet date, in which case these financial assets are classified as short term investments in the balance
sheet.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized directly in
equity are included in the profit or lossas gains and losses from investment securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Dividends on available-for sale equity
instruments are recognized in the profit or losswhen the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where the management has the intention
and ability to hold till maturity, are carried at amortized cost.
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Note 4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Contd…

Note 4.13.1 , Summary of Financial Assets - Contd…

4.13.2 Financial liabilities

4.13.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.14 Foreign currency transactions

4.15 Related party transactions

4.16 Revenue recognition

-   Local sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to customers.
-   Export sales are recorded on the receipt of bills of lading.
-  

4.17 Borrowing costs

Dividend on equity investments is recognized as income when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

Borrowing costs are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred except those costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets that are capitalized as part of the cost of assets.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are initially recorded in Pak Rupees by applying the foreign exchange rate ruling on
the date of transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are included in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost using the effective yield
method.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets and financial liabilities and tax assets and tax liabilities are set off in the balance sheet, only when the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all transactions between the Company and the related
party or between two or more segments of the Company are at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled price method
except in circumstances where it is not in the interest of the Company to do so.
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Note 4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Contd…

4.18 Segment reporting

4.19 Dividends

4.20 Fair value measurement

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(the Chief Executive Officer of the Company). Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. When applicable, the Company measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at
initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Company determines
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to the profit or losson an appropriate basis over the life of the
instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which these are declared.
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Note 5
Change in Accounting Policy

The impact of this change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively from the earliest period presented in these financial statements:

Effect on statement of financial position

Surplus on revaluation of property,
    plant and equipment 483,510,877 (483,510,877) - -

--

- -

505,320,397 (505,320,397)
 Share capital and reserves 483,510,877 483,510,877 505,320,397

 Effect on statement of changes in equity

Revaluation surplus 483,510,877 483,510,877 505,320,397

The Company has changed its accounting policy for the presentation and treatment of Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment in line with the
requirements of newly promulgated Companies Act, 2017 which does not stipulate any special treatment for revaluation surplus and therefore allows the
presentation prescribed under IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". Thus, the Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment is presented as equity.
This change in policy is applied retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"
with effect from earliest period presented in these financial statements. Since section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 has lost its application, the
revaluation surplus which was previously shown as a separate line item on statement of financial position, has now been presented in equity for the year ended
June 30 2017, and figures have been restated accordingly. 

In view of the above, the accounting policy for the presentation and treatment of Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment is given below:

Increase in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, building, plant and machinery and power house are recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders' equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in statement of profit or
loss, the increase in first recognized in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive
income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is
reclassified from the Revaluation surplus on land, building, plant and machinery and power house to retained earnings.

------------------------------------Rupees ------------------------------------

As at June 30, 2017 As at June 30, 2016

As previously 
reported on 

June 30, 2017
Adjustment

As restated  
on June 30, 

2017

As previously 
reported on 

June 30, 2016
Adjustment

505,320,397

505,320,397

As at June 30, 2016

As restated  
on June 30, 

2016 
(Restated)
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Note 6
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

2018 2017 2018
            Number of shares Rupees

12,240,569 12,240,569 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid in cash 122,405,690        

4,418,803          4,418,803          Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each issued for consideration 
otherwise than in cash 44,188,030          

1,312,000          1,312,000          Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each issued as fully paid 
bonus shares 13,120,000          

17,971,372         17,971,372         179,713,720        

6.1

6.2

6.3

Note 7
Reserves

2018

Capital

Share premium reserve 5,796,000            

Revenue
Unappropriated profits 1,144,008,529     

      1,149,804,529 
Note 8
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
 2018

Land -  freehold:
- Opening balance 8.1 239,616,170        
- Revaluation during the year 8.2 310,962,000        

550,578,170        
Buildings on freehold land:

- Opening balance 8.1 139,352,471        
- Revaluation during the year 8.2 21,355,595          

160,708,066        
Plant and machinery:

- Opening balance 8.1 93,679,751          
- Revaluation during the year 8.2 (7,709,588)           

85,970,163          
Power house:

- Opening balance 8.1 10,862,485          
- Revaluation during the year 8.2 2,642,022            

13,504,507          

810,760,906        

Related deferred taxation (3,692,495)          
807,068,411        

Deferred tax relating to export 8.3 (3,149,085)          
Deferred tax due to rate change 2,348,104            
Incremental depreciation charged on revalued property, plant

and equipment during the year transferred to retained
earnings - net of deferred tax (13,069,861)         

No shares were issued or cancelled during the year (2017: Nil).

Sargodha Jute Mills Limited, an associate, held 21,090 (2017: 21,090) ordinary shares of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

There are no agreements with shareholders for any specific voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and block voting etc.

Surplus realized on disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment   
 transferred to retained earnings - net of deferred tax (9,407,807)

783,789,762

2017
Rupees

122,405,690

44,188,030

13,120,000
179,713,720       

2017
RupeesRupees

Rupees

5,796,000          

1,082,991,306    
     1,088,787,306 

2017
Rupees

239,616,170       
-                    

239,616,170       

149,190,269       
-                    

149,190,269       

100,417,747       
-                    

100,417,747       

16,096,211        
-                    

16,096,211        

505,320,397       

-                    
505,320,397       

(4,573,812)         
-                    

(15,431,522)       

(1,804,186)         
483,510,877       
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Note 8, 'Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment - Contd…

8.1

8.2

Land Market Value
Buildings Market Value

Market Value
Market Value

8.3

Note 9
Long Term Financing

2018
Note Rupees

Long term financing 9.1 98,776,500          
Less : Current portion (40,740,400)         

          58,036,100 

9.1

Note 10
Staff Retirement Benefits

2018
Note Rupees

Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity 10.2.3 117,208,249        
 

10.1

10.2 Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 9.00%
Expected rate of salary increase in future years 8.00%
Average expected remaining working life of employees 6.35 Years
Expected mortality rate for active members

Actuarial valuation method

10.2.1 Reconciliation of the funded status

Present value of defined benefit obligation 10.2.2 117,208,249        

The company does not maintain plan assets to cover its defined benefit obligation.

10.2.2 Company's liability

Opening balance 91,186,667          
Charge for the year 10.2.4 34,453,390          

This represents amount transferred to deferred tax liability due to change in proportion of local and export sales resulting in change in
estimate of deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering its permanent employees subject to completion of minimum prescribed period
of service. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out annually by an independent actuary and the latest actuarial valuation has been
carried out as at June 30, 2018. Following key information is included in that actuarial report:

As per SLIC (2001-2005) Mortality 
Table with one year setback
Projected Unit Credit Method

These represent long term loans from JS Bank Limited and Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited for enhancement / replacement of power
generation facilities under State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) concessional rate scheme. These loans are secured against specific and exclusive
charge on relevant fixed assets of the Company and are repayable in 3 to 5 years starting from February 2017 and ending in February 2022.
Mark up on these facilities is charged at SBP rate which is 5% payable quarterly along with payment of principal.

Plant and Machinery
Power House

Latest revaluation of property plant and equipment has been carried out on June 30, 2018, by an independent valuer that has resulted in
revaluation surplus of Rs. 327.250 million. The following basis have been used for revaluation:

First revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer as at September 30, 1995 resulting in
revaluation surplus of Rs. 435.412 million. 

Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive 
income - experience adjustment 16,263,853

141,903,910
Benefits paid to outgoing employees (24,695,661)

117,208,249        

2017
Rupees

139,516,900
(40,740,400)

         98,776,500 

2017
Rupees

91,186,667        

7.50%
6.50%
7 Years

91,186,667        

93,332,207        
34,597,584         

As per SLIC (2001-2005) Mortality 
Table with one year setback
Projected Unit Credit Method

(9,234,801)
118,694,990
(27,508,323)
91,186,667        
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Note 10, 'Staff Retirement Benefits - Contd…

Note 10.2, Actualrial Assumptions - Contd…
2018

10.2.3 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation Rupees

Opening balance 91,186,667          
Current service cost 28,540,477          
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 5,912,913            
Benefits paid to outgoing employees (24,695,661)         
Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive 

income - experience adjustment 16,263,853          
117,208,249        

10.2.4 Charge for the year

Current service cost 28,540,477          
Interest cost 5,912,913            

34,453,390          

10.2.5 Charge for the year has been allocated as under

Cost of sales 29,500,000          
Administrative expenses 4,953,390            

34,453,390          

10.2.6 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation

Rupees

Discount rate 1% 110,232,342        
Salary increase 1% 125,363,688        

10.2.7

2018 2016 2015
Rupees

Present value of
defined benefit obligation 117,208,249      

Fair value of plan asset -                   -                -                -                     
Net liability 117,208,249      93,332,207     88,831,027          

Note 11
Deferred Tax Liability - Net

2018
Rupees

Taxable temporary differences:
- Share of net profit of associate 48,657,648          
- Accelerated tax depreciation 155,338,377        
- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 68,349,707          

272,345,732        
Deductible temporary differences:

- Staff retirement benefits and others (26,565,531)         
- Unused tax credits available (70,557,481)         
- Others (2,400,520)          

Reasonably possible changes at the balance sheet date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

2017
Rupees

91,186,667         

 Increase in 
assumption 

Change in 
assumption

The Company does not have any plan assets covering its post-employment benefits payable. The comparative statement of present value of
defined benefit obligations is as under: 

Rupees

91,186,667         

Rupees

93,332,207      88,831,027           

(99,523,532)
172,822,200        

2017
Rupees

93,332,208
28,828,176
5,769,407

(27,508,323)

(9,234,801)
91,186,667        

28,828,176        
5,769,407          

34,597,583         

29,500,000        
5,097,583          

34,597,583         

Rupees
 

125,128,550       
109,887,175       

2014
Rupees

72,795,423         
-                    

72,795,423         

2017
Rupees

38,129,336        
157,445,589       
70,443,104        

266,018,029       

(20,435,315)       
(42,565,969)       
(1,150,562)         

 Decrease in 
assumption 

(64,151,846)
201,866,183       
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Note 12
Trade and Other Payables

2018
Note Rupees

Creditors for:
-   Goods supplied 12.1 30,446,325          
-   Services 8,531,889            
Accrued liabilities 12.2 277,587,056        
Advances from customers 7,543,298            
Workers' (profit) participation fund 12.3 6,378,311            
Workers' welfare fund 4,212,881            
Sales tax payable 12.4 20,481,774          
Unclaimed wages 4,032,363            

359,213,897        

12.1

12.2

12.3 Workers' (profit) participation fund

Opening balance 3,450,221            
Provision for the year 6,449,085            

9,899,306            
Paid during the year (3,520,995)          
Closing balance 6,378,311            

12.4

Note 13
Short Term Borrowings

2018
Note Rupees

From banking companies - Secured

Cash / packing finances 13.1 488,605,485        

From related parties - Unsecured

Loan from directors 13.2 -                     
488,605,485        

13.1

13.2

Note 14
Provision for Taxation - net

2018
Rupees

Opening balance 45,166,955          
Charge for the year - Current 67,774,490          
Payments / adjustments against advance tax, tax credits and refunds (45,166,955)         

67,774,490          

14.1

The Company obtained various funded and unfunded financial facilities from different banks for a total sanctioned limit of Rs. 2,194 million
(2017: Rs. 2,559 million) towards working capital requirements, retirement of local and foreign LC's discounting local bills / receivables. These
facilities shall expire on various dates latest by January 31, 2019. Mark up on these facilities is charged from 1 to 3 month KIBOR plus a
spread of 1% to 1.25% (2017: 1 to 6 month KIBOR plus a spread of 1.25% to 2.25%) payable quarterly. The aggregate short term finances
are secured by ranking and hypothecation charge on property, plant and equipment, stocks and receivables of the Company; lien over export
and import documents and personal guarantee of sponsoring directors of the Company. The above balance represents the utilized portion of
the funded facilities, whereas the Company has also utilized Rs. 77.25 (2017: 75.42 million) from its non-funded facilities.

This includes Rs. 18.82 million (2017: 42.16) on account of provision for further sales tax.

This represented short term loan obtained from directors to meet the working capital requirements of the Company. The loan was unsecured
and carried mark up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR (2017: 3 months KIBOR), payable quarterly. During the year Company has paid off the
loan.

The provision for current year is based on turnover tax i.e. 1.25% on domestic sales, 1% and 15% FTR on export sales and dividend income
respectively. Sufficient tax provision has been incorporated in these financial statements. 

This includes Rs. 119.93 million (2017: 88.91 million) on account of gas infrastructure development cess (GIDC).

There is amount of Rs. 63,294 outstanding payable to related party i.e. Sargodha Jute Mills Limited as at the balance sheet date.

14.2 Income tax assessments are deemed finalized by the management up to the Tax Year 2017 as tax returns were filed under the self
assessment scheme.

2017
Rupees

22,253,176
12,718,339

176,585,064
138,205

3,450,221
1,683,828

43,595,834
2,733,751

263,158,418       

1,184,115          
3,450,221          
4,634,336          

(1,184,115)         
3,450,221          

2017
Rupees

366,846,544       

40,000,000        
406,846,544       

2017
Rupees

37,340,529         
46,435,705         

(38,609,279)       
45,166,955        
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Note 14, Provision for Taxation - net, cont…

14.3

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

Income tax provision for the year  (as per accounts)      45,166,955           37,340,529 

Income tax as per tax assessment      45,166,955           37,340,529 

Note 15
Contingencies and Commitments

15.1 Contingencies

15.1.1

2018

- Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited                   72.64 

15.1.2

15.2 Commitments

15.2.1

                  50.34 
                    4.61 
                  54.95 

Rupees in Million

The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the sufficient provision for the
purpose of taxation is available. The comparison of estimated provision for taxation and actual tax assessed as per income tax return filed for
previous years can be analyzed as follows:

Letters of credits

The Company is contingently liable for Rs. 19.983 million (June 2017: Rs. 16.367 million) on account of electricity duty on self generation. The
company has obtained stay order by filing petition on August 10, 2010 in Lahore High Court, Lahore. However the company has not admitted
the said duty and case is pending before the Lahore High Court, Lahore.

The Company has provided bank guarantees / post dated cheques in the favor of following parties:

Foreign bills of exchange purchased

The Company's outstanding commitments / contracts as at the balance sheet date are as under:

2015
Rupees

         42,698,034 

         42,693,857 

2017

                 69.32 

                 89.08 
                   6.10 
                 95.18 



Annual Report 2018

SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 47

N
ot

e 
16

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 P

la
nt

 a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

 
20

18
20

17
N

ot
e

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
fix

ed
 a

ss
et

s
16

.1
1,

90
7,

74
0,

46
9

   
   

 
1,

60
9,

82
5,

93
9

   
   

 
Ca

pi
ta

l w
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s
16

.8
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,1

58
,3

42
   

   
   

  
1,

90
7,

74
0,

46
9

   
   

 
1,

68
4,

98
4,

28
1

   
   

 
16

.1
 O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 f
ix

ed
 a

ss
et

s

Y
ea

r 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8

As
 a

t
To

ta
l a

s 
at

R
at

e
U

p 
to

Fo
r 

th
e

To
ta

l a
s 

at

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
8

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7
ye

ar
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
8

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
%

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

O
w

ne
d

La
nd

 -
 f

re
eh

ol
d

24
4,

41
8,

00
0

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

31
0,

96
2,

00
0

   
   

   
  

55
5,

38
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

-
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

5,
38

0,
00

0
   

   
   

Bu
ild

in
gs

 o
n 

fr
ee

ho
ld

 la
nd

31
3,

51
6,

50
0

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

21
,3

55
,5

95
   

   
   

   
 

30
4,

39
6,

98
9

   
   

   
  

5
15

,5
78

,1
90

   
   

   
  

14
,8

96
,9

16
   

   
   

  
(3

0,
47

5,
10

6)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
4,

39
6,

98
9

   
   

   

(3
0,

47
5,

10
6)

   
   

   
   

Pl
an

t 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

89
0,

07
8,

28
9

   
   

   
  

3,
50

5,
99

9
   

   
   

   
  

 
(7

,7
09

,5
88

)
   

   
   

   
  

78
2,

89
4,

64
4

   
   

   
  

5
44

,3
98

,5
57

   
   

   
  

42
,0

92
,5

09
   

   
   

  
(8

4,
93

8,
05

6)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
2,

89
4,

64
4

   
   

   

(1
8,

04
2,

00
0)

   
   

   
   

(8
4,

93
8,

05
6)

   
   

   
   

(1
,5

53
,0

10
)

   
   

   
   

Po
w

er
 h

ou
se

16
5,

04
0,

27
1

   
   

   
  

10
1,

50
6,

60
9

   
   

   
  

2,
64

2,
02

2
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
20

12
,5

99
,1

69
   

   
   

  
39

,4
43

,0
66

   
   

   
  

(4
7,

18
8,

90
2)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

1,
00

0,
00

0
   

   
   

(2
1,

00
0,

00
0)

   
   

   
   

(4
7,

18
8,

90
2)

   
   

   
   

(4
,8

53
,3

33
)

   
   

   
   

Fu
rn

itu
re

 a
nd

 f
ix

tu
re

s
5,

86
7,

17
2

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

5,
86

7,
17

2
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

5,
37

4,
09

2
   

   
   

   
 

49
,3

08
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

42
3,

40
0

   
   

   
   

 
44

3,
77

2
   

   
   

   
   

 

Ve
hi

cl
es

10
0,

21
0,

22
5

   
   

   
  

7,
57

9,
08

0
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0,
16

4,
36

7
   

   
   

  
20

48
,3

52
,5

04
   

   
   

  
10

,9
46

,4
54

   
   

   
  

54
,9

82
,1

20
   

   
   

  
45

,1
82

,2
47

   
   

   
  

(7
,6

24
,9

38
)

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,3
16

,8
38

)
   

   
   

   

El
ec

tr
ic

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

43
,6

28
,4

77
   

   
   

   
 

3,
22

6,
88

0
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  
 

46
,8

55
,3

57
   

   
   

   
 

10
27

,4
04

,5
26

   
   

   
  

1,
64

9,
28

7
   

   
   

   
 

29
,0

53
,8

13
   

   
   

  
17

,8
01

,5
44

   
   

   
  

Co
m

pu
te

rs
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

55
3,

21
4

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

3,
55

3,
21

4
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

2,
94

8,
70

0
   

   
   

   
 

12
0,

90
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
06

9,
60

4
   

   
   

   
 

48
3,

61
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ar
m

s 
an

d 
am

m
un

iti
on

41
0,

77
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

41
0,

77
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
24

1,
24

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,8
66

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
3,

11
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
7,

66
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
76

6,
72

2,
92

3
   

   
   

11
5,

81
8,

56
8

   
   

   
  

32
7,

25
0,

02
9

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
52

2,
51

8
   

   
  

15
6,

89
6,

98
4

   
   

   
10

9,
21

0,
31

0
   

   
   

92
,7

82
,0

49
   

   
   

  
1,

90
7,

74
0,

46
9

   
   

 

(4
6,

66
6,

93
8)

   
   

   
   

(1
62

,6
02

,0
64

)
   

   
   

 
(1

0,
72

3,
18

1)
   

   
   

 
(1

62
,6

02
,0

64
)

   
   

  

To
ta

l a
s 

at
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
8

1,
76

6,
72

2,
92

3
   

   
   

69
,1

51
,6

30
   

   
   

   
 

16
4,

64
7,

96
5

   
   

   
  

2,
00

0,
52

2,
51

8
   

   
  

15
6,

89
6,

98
4

   
   

   
98

,4
87

,1
29

   
   

   
  

(1
62

,6
02

,0
64

)
   

   
  

92
,7

82
,0

49
   

   
   

  
1,

90
7,

74
0,

46
9

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8

C
os

t 
/ 

R
ev

al
ue

d 
  A

m
ou

nt
s

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
B

oo
k 

V
al

ue

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

as
 a

t 
Re

va
lu

at
io

n 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
Re

va
lu

at
io

n 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
Ad

di
tio

ns
 /

 
(D

is
po

sa
ls

)



SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED48

Annual Report 2018

16
.2

 O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 f

ix
ed

 a
ss

et
s

Y
ea

r 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7

As
 a

t
Ad

di
tio

ns
 /

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
(D

is
po

sa
ls

)
To

ta
l a

s 
at

R
at

e
U

p 
to

Fo
r 

th
e

To
ta

l a
s 

at

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
7

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6
ye

ar
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
7

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
%

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

O
w

ne
d

La
nd

 -
 f
re

eh
ol

d
24

4,
41

8,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
24

4,
41

8,
00

0
   

   
   

  
-

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 o
n 

fr
ee

ho
ld

 la
nd

31
0,

16
9,

00
0

   
   

   
  

3,
34

7,
50

0
   

   
   

   
  

 
31

3,
51

6,
50

0
   

   
   

  
5

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
,5

78
,1

90
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
,5

78
,1

90
   

  

Pl
an

t 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

88
6,

98
3,

00
1

   
   

   
  

3,
09

5,
28

8
   

   
   

   
  

 
89

0,
07

8,
28

9
   

   
   

  
5

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

44
,3

98
,5

57
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

44
,3

98
,5

57
   

  

Po
w

er
 h

ou
se

67
,7

57
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

11
1,

28
3,

27
1

   
   

   
  

(1
4,

00
0,

00
0)

   
   

   
   

16
5,

04
0,

27
1

   
   

   
  

20
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
14

,8
22

,7
61

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,2
23

,5
92

)
   

   
   

   
 

12
,5

99
,1

69
   

  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 

Fu
rn

itu
re

 a
nd

 f
ix

tu
re

s
5,

86
7,

17
2

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

5,
86

7,
17

2
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

5,
31

9,
30

6
   

   
   

   
  

54
,7

86
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

5,
37

4,
09

2
   

   
 

Ve
hi

cl
es

93
,3

64
,4

40
   

   
   

   
 

23
,2

04
,3

44
   

   
   

   
 

(1
6,

35
8,

55
9)

   
   

   
   

10
0,

21
0,

22
5

   
   

   
  

20
46

,0
56

,2
90

   
   

   
   

11
,3

32
,4

91
   

   
   

   
 

(9
,0

36
,2

77
)

   
   

   
   

 
48

,3
52

,5
04

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 

El
ec

tr
ic

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

43
,6

28
,4

77
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

43
,6

28
,4

77
   

   
   

   
 

10
25

,6
01

,8
66

   
   

   
   

1,
80

2,
66

0
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
27

,4
04

,5
26

   
  

Co
m

pu
te

rs
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

49
4,

41
4

   
   

   
   

  
 

58
,8

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
55

3,
21

4
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

2,
81

1,
04

5
   

   
   

   
  

13
7,

65
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

2,
94

8,
70

0
   

   
 

Ar
m

s 
an

d 
am

m
un

iti
on

41
0,

77
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

41
0,

77
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

7
22

8,
48

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

,7
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
24

1,
24

6
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l a
s 

at
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
7

1,
65

6,
09

2,
27

9
   

   
  

14
0,

98
9,

20
3

   
   

   
  

(3
0,

35
8,

55
9)

   
   

   
   

1,
76

6,
72

2,
92

3
   

   
   

80
,0

16
,9

93
   

   
   

   
88

,1
39

,8
60

   
   

   
   

 
(1

1,
25

9,
86

9)
   

   
   

   
15

6,
89

6,
98

4
   

16
.3

H
ad

 t
he

re
 b

ee
n 

no
 r

ev
al

ua
tio

n,
 t

he
 c

os
t,

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
an

d 
bo

ok
 v

al
ue

s 
of

 r
ev

al
ue

d 
as

se
ts

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

C
os

t 
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
B

oo
k 

V
al

ue

La
nd

 
4,

80
1,

83
0

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

4,
80

1,
83

0
   

   
   

   
  

 

Bu
ild

in
g 

on
 fr

ee
ho

ld
 la

nd
21

7,
69

7,
22

6
   

   
   

   
10

5,
27

6,
84

8
   

   
   

  
11

2,
42

0,
37

8
   

   
   

  

Pl
an

t 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

1,
26

8,
96

8,
92

0
   

   
  

60
5,

00
1,

39
2

   
   

   
  

66
3,

96
7,

52
8

   
   

   
  

Po
w

er
 h

ou
se

32
0,

96
6,

37
5

   
   

   
  

11
0,

64
2,

36
1

   
   

   
  

21
0,

32
4,

01
4

   
   

   
  

1,
81

2,
43

4,
35

1
   

  
82

0,
92

0,
60

1
   

   
  

99
1,

51
3,

75
0

   
   

  

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

(D
is

po
sa

l)

C
os

t 
/ 

R
ev

al
ue

d 
  A

m
ou

nt
s

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

A
s 

on
 J

un
e 

30
,2

01
8

Ru
pe

es

24
4,

41
8,

00
0

29
7,

93
8,

31
0

84
5,

67
9,

73
2

15
2,

44
1,

10
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

49
3,

08
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
,8

57
,7

21
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
,2

23
,9

51
   

   
   

   
 

60
4,

51
4

   
   

   
   

   
  16

9,
52

9
   

   
   

   
   

  

1,
60

9,
82

5,
93

9

as
 a

t 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7

B
oo

k 
V

al
ue



N
ot

e 
16

, P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 P

la
nt

 a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

- 
Co

nt
d…

20
18

20
17

16
.4

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
ch

ar
ge

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

as
 u

nd
er

:
N

ot
e

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Co
st

 o
f 

sa
le

s
27

98
,0

81
,7

77
  
  

 
76

,6
02

,1
68

  
   

   
 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

29
11

,1
28

,5
32

  
  

 
11

,5
37

,6
92

  
   

   
 

10
9,

21
0,

30
9

  
  

88
,1

39
,8

60
  
   

   
 

16
.5

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s 

of
 im

m
ov

ab
le

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
(i.

e.
 la

nd
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g)

 in
 t

he
 n

am
e 

of
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:

Lo
ca

ti
on

 /
 A

dd
re

ss
U

sa
ge

 o
f 

Im
m

ov
ab

le
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

To
ta

l A
re

a 
C

ov
er

ed
 A

re
a 

(I
n 

sq
. f

t.
)

34
th

 K
m

, L
ah

or
e 

Sh
ei

ku
pu

ra
 R

oa
d,

 S
he

ik
up

ur
a

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
U

ni
t 1

,3
,4

10
4 

K
an

al
s 

an
d 

3 
M

ar
la

's
43

3,
34

7
  
   

   
  
  
  

7-
Km

 S
he

ik
up

ur
a 

Fa
is

al
ab

ad
 R

oa
d,

 K
ha

ria
nw

al
a

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
U

ni
t 2

12
3 

K
an

al
s 

an
d 

18
 M

ar
la

's
25

0,
18

4
  
   

   
  
  
  

O
ff

ic
e 

N
o.

 7
03

, 7
th

 F
lo

or
, T

ric
on

 c
or

po
ra

te
 c

en
te

r, 
La

ho
re

5,
15

0
  
   

   
  
  
   

  

16
.6

Fo
rc

ed
 s

al
es

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
fr

ee
ho

ld
 la

nd
, b

ui
ld

in
g,

 p
la

nt
 a

nd
 m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 a
nd

 p
ow

er
 h

ou
se

 is
 R

s.
 4

72
,0

73
,0

00
, R

s.
 2

58
,7

37
,4

41
, R

s.
 6

65
,4

60
,4

47
 a

nd
 R

s.
 1

70
,8

50
,0

00
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

16
.7

D
et

ai
l o

f 
it

em
s 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 p
la

nt
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
ha

vi
ng

 b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
R

s.
 5

00
,0

00
 s

ol
d 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 y

ea
r

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
Ru

pe
es

Ru
pe

es
V

eh
ic

le
s

H
on

da
-C

iv
ic

1,
20

5,
00

0
  
   

  
  
   

(6
96

,3
51

)
  
   

   
  
  

50
8,

64
9

  
   

  
  
   

  
 

50
8,

64
9

  
   

   
  
  

 
-

  
   

   
  
  
   

  
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
Az

m
at

 U
lla

h,
 L

ah
or

e
To

yo
ta

 C
or

ol
la

 G
LI

1,
43

4,
00

0
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

,1
90

,7
42

)
  
   

   
  

24
3,

25
8

  
   

  
  
   

  
 

1,
05

0,
00

0
  
   

   
   

80
6,

74
2

  
   

   
  

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

Fa
iz

 A
hm

ad
 K

ha
n,

 L
ah

or
e

H
on

da
-C

iv
ic

2,
72

5,
26

0
  
  
  
   

   
 

(6
38

,9
22

)
  
   

   
  
  

2,
08

6,
33

8
  
   

  
  
   

2,
60

0,
00

0
  
   

   
   

51
3,

66
2

  
   

   
  

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

Ij
az

 A
hm

ad
, L

ah
or

e
To

yo
ta

 C
or

ol
la

 G
LI

1,
53

1,
04

0
  
  
  
   

   
(1

,2
18

,8
77

)
  
   

   
  

31
2,

16
3

  
   

  
  
   

  
 

1,
18

5,
00

0
  
   

   
   

87
2,

83
7

  
   

   
  

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

Ib
ra

r 
Ah

m
ad

, L
ah

or
e

Su
zu

ki
 A

lto
72

9,
63

8
  
   

  
  
   

  
 

(5
71

,9
46

)
  
   

   
  
  

15
7,

69
2

  
   

  
  
   

  
 

65
0,

00
0

  
   

   
  
  

 
49

2,
30

8
  
   

   
  

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

As
im

 Z
af

ar
 B

ut
t,

 L
ah

or
e

P
la

nt
 a

nd
 m

ac
hi

ne
ry

G
as

 G
en

er
at

or
 

7,
00

0,
00

0
  
   

  
  
  
  

(1
,4

93
,3

33
)

  
   

   
  

5,
50

6,
66

7
  
   

  
  
   

5,
00

0,
00

0
  
   

   
   

(5
06

,6
67

)
  
   

   
 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

O
rie

nt
 E

ne
rg

y 
Sy

st
em

s 
(P

riv
at

e)
 

Li
m

ite
d,

 L
ah

or
e

G
as

 G
en

er
at

or
 

7,
00

0,
00

0
  
  
  
   

   
 

(1
,4

93
,3

33
)

  
   

   
  

5,
50

6,
66

7
  
   

  
  
   

5,
00

0,
00

0
  
   

   
   

(5
06

,6
67

)
  
   

   
 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

O
rie

nt
 E

ne
rg

y 
Sy

st
em

s 
(P

riv
at

e)
 

Li
m

ite
d,

 L
ah

or
e

G
as

 G
en

er
at

or
 

7,
00

0,
00

0
  
  
  
   

   
 

(1
,8

66
,6

67
)

  
   

   
  

5,
13

3,
33

3
  
   

  
  
   

3,
20

0,
00

0
  
   

   
   

(1
,9

33
,3

33
)

  
   

 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
St

am
ec

o 
En

er
gy

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
, S

hi
ek

up
ur

a
D

ra
w

in
g 

2Y
 L

ow
a 

A/
C 

8 
To

n 
H

vc
 9

00
Sc

ut
ch

er
 F

a 
Co

ne
 W

in
id

in
g 

M
ur

at
a

8,
71

2,
00

0
  
  
  
   

   
 

(7
11

,4
81

)
  
   

   
  
  

8,
00

0,
51

9
  
   

  
  
   

1,
99

7,
04

5
  
   

   
   

(6
,0

03
,4

74
)

  
   

 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
Ta

riq
 M

eh
m

oo
d,

 S
hi

ek
up

ur
a

Cl
as

sm
at

e,
 c

om
pr

es
so

r 
Bo

g,
 F

uj
i a

nd
 H

un
 g

ua
n

71
4,

00
0

  
  
  
   

   
  

 
(5

8,
31

0)
  
   

   
  
  
  

65
5,

69
0

  
   

  
  
   

  
 

16
3,

67
0

  
   

   
  
  

 
(4

92
,0

20
)

  
   

   
 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n

Ta
riq

 M
eh

m
oo

d,
 S

hi
ek

up
ur

a
O

ld
 M

ac
hi

ne
 C

on
e 

7.
2 

M
od

el
 1

98
5

2,
87

2,
00

0
  
  
  
   

   
(2

68
,6

52
)

  
   

   
  
  

2,
60

3,
34

8
  
   

  
  
   

53
7,

89
8

  
   

   
  
  
  

(2
,0

65
,4

50
)

  
   

 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
W

is
al

 K
am

al
 F

ab
ric

s,
 S

hi
ek

up
ur

a

M
od

e 
of

 d
is

po
sa

l
Pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

s 
of

 b
uy

er
s

 C
os

t 
/ 

Re
va

lu
ed

 
am

ou
nt

 
 A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

 B
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

 D
is

po
sa

l p
ro

ce
ed

s 
 G

ai
n 

/ 
(L

os
s)

 

O
ld

 M
ac

hi
ne

 C
on

e 
7.

2 
M

od
el

 1
98

5
2,

87
2,

00
0

  
   

   
  
  

(2
57

,2
83

)
  
   

  
  
   

 
2,

61
4,

71
7

  
   

   
  
  

 
55

4,
62

3
  
   

   
  
  

 
(2

,0
60

,0
94

)
  
   

 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
M

uh
am

m
ad

 S
al

ee
m

, F
ai

sa
la

ba
d

O
ld

 M
ac

hi
ne

 C
on

e 
7.

2 
M

od
el

 1
98

5
2,

87
2,

00
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
57

,2
83

)
  
   

  
  
   

 
2,

61
4,

71
7

  
   

   
  
  

 
55

4,
62

3
  
   

   
  
  

 
(2

,0
60

,0
94

)
  
   

 
N

eg
ot

ia
tio

n
M

uh
am

m
ad

 S
al

ee
m

, F
ai

sa
la

ba
d

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

Em
pl

oy
ee

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

N
o 

re
la

tio
n

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 

Annual Report 2018

SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 49



Note 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Contd…

16.8 Capital Work in Progress
2018

Plant and machinery Rupees

Opening balance 75,158,342
Additions during the year 33,081,146
Transferred to plant and machinery (108,239,488)

-                     

Note 17
Long Term Investment

2018
Rupees

Associates - Unquoted

Sargodha Jute Mills Limited: 
8,120,000 (2017: 8,120,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Equity held 24.94% (2017: 24.94%)
Cost of investment Rs. 65,600,000 (2017: Rs. 65,600,000) 

- Opening balance 370,634,687        
- Share in net profit for the year of associate 40,087,570          
- Share in realized surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment of associate 3,926,406            
- Surplus realized on disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment   

 transferred to retained earnings - net of deferred tax of associate 816,468              
- Share in deficit on investments available for sale of

associate (7,199,126)           
- Share in remeasurement of staff retirement benefits liability (2,041,686)          
- Less: Dividend received (16,240,000)         

389,984,319        

17.1  

17.2  

2018

Equity 1,749,902            
Total assets 3,616,267            
Revenue 3,803,420            
Net profit for the year 160,736              

Note 18
Long Term Deposits

2018
Rupees

Deposit with LESCO 11,951,410          
Others 2,118,959            

14,070,369          

Note 19
Stores and Spares

2018
Note Rupees

Stores and spares 19.1 59,294,042          

19.1

The Company holds 24.94% (2017: 24.94%) shareholding in Sargodha Jute Mills Limited (the associate) and accounts for this investment
under equity method as prescribed in IAS 28 (Investments in Associates). Information extracted from the audited financial statements of the
associate is as follows:

Rupees in thousand

The investment made in associated company have been made in accordance with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2017.

This includes stores in transit amounting to Rs. 1.067 million (2017: Rs. 7.335 million) as at the balance sheet date.

2017
Rupees

                      -   
188,441,613       

(113,283,271)     
75,158,342        

2017
Rupees

344,014,924       
36,953,173        

1,707,809           

-                    

(840,245)            
(1,050,974)         

(10,150,000)       
370,634,687       

2017

(Restated)

1,683,956          
2,978,598          
3,332,965          

148,168             

2017
Rupees

11,951,410        
2,018,959          

13,970,369        

2017
Rupees

71,792,058         
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Note 20
Stock in Trade

2018
Rupees

Raw materials 553,612,147
Work in process 37,450,722
Finished goods 65,590,269

656,653,138        

20.1

Note 21
Trade Debts

2018
Note Rupees

Local debts (Unsecured - considered good) 21.1 71,943,496          
Foreign debts (Secured - considered good) 21.3 31,182,860          

103,126,356        

21.1

21.2

21.3

Note 22
Advances, Trade Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

2018
Note Rupees

Advances (Unsecured - considered good):
- Employees 22.1 747,559              
- Suppliers and others 36,487,677                   

Income tax deducted at source / Advance tax 32,207,246          
Margins with banks against:

- Letters of credit 22.2 1,641,893            
- Letters of guarantee 7,042,811            

Prepayments 672,346              
Duty draw back on export 41,075,441          
Insurance claims receivable 2,274,437            
Other receivables 215,908              

122,365,318        

22.1

22.2

Note 23
Short Term Investments

2018
Note Rupees

At fair value through profit or loss

Investment in quoted shares 23.1 1,189,565            
Investment in mutual funds 23.2 7,250,485            

8,440,050            

23.1

23.2

Stocks amounting to Rs. 275.321 million (2017: Rs. 274.595 million) approximately are pledged against short term borrowings.

Amount due from chief executive, directors and executives as at the balance sheet date was Nil (2017: Nil).

Investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IAS - 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement). The quoted market value in an active market is considered as the fair value of investment. The resulting difference between
cost and fair value of investment is taken to the profit or loss account.

There is amount of Rs. 198,286 outstanding receivable from related party i.e. Sargodha Jute Mills Limited as at the balance sheet date.

This includes the amount given to clearing agent for import of raw material.

The amount of Rs. 31.182 million (2017: 34.249 million) are secured by way of export Letters of Credit. 

The maximum aggregate amount due from related party at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 70,918 (2017: Rs. 116,087)

2017
Rupees

389,941,855
33,323,636
55,108,377

478,373,868       

2017
Rupees

58,434,374        
34,249,356        
92,683,730         

2017
Rupees

212,408             
6,578,076                             

22,137,779         

-                    
7,042,811          
1,367,444          

10,324,846        
3,259,344          

132,030             
51,054,738         

2017
Rupees

820,508             
-                    

820,508             

Investments are made in Islamic hybrid funds 2-JSICPAP-2 on which lien is marked by the JS bank, against which guarantee has been issued
by JS bank on behalf of company to Excise and Taxation department.
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Note 24
Tax Refunds Due from the Government

2018

Rupees

Sales tax 24,758,382
Income tax 39,294,829

64,053,211          

Note 25
Cash and Bank Balances

2018
Rupees

Cash in hand 752,276              
Cash at banks - Current accounts 104,042,134        

104,794,410        
Note 26
Sales - Net

2018
Rupees

Yarn sales
- Local 4,298,088,899     
- Export 1,113,894,007     

Waste sales 43,478,717          
Duty draw back 43,040,587          

5,498,502,210     

Commission to selling agents (28,620,749)         
Sales tax (5,603,596)          

(34,224,345)         
5,464,277,865      

Note 27
Cost of Sales

2018
Note Rupees

Raw materials consumed 3,663,384,065     
Stores and spares consumed 105,147,816        
Packing materials consumed 138,731,680        
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 525,456,187        
Fuel and power 651,380,704        
Insurance 8,280,303            
Repairs and maintenance 10,880,748          
Other manufacturing expenses 9,958,008            
Depreciation 16.4 98,081,777          

5,211,301,288     

Opening work in process 33,323,636          
Closing work in process (37,450,722)         

(4,127,086)           
Cost of goods manufactured: 5,207,174,202      

- Opening finished goods 55,108,377          
- Closing finished goods (65,590,269)         

(10,481,892)         
5,196,692,310     

27.1

Note 28
Selling and Distribution Costs 

2018

This includes Rs. 29.50 million (2017: Rs. 29.50 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

Rupees

Freight and octroi 8,503,130
Export sale expenses 17,299,118

25,802,248          

2017

Rupees

58,563,762
25,583,025
84,146,787         

2017
Rupees

631,659             
59,708,108         
60,339,767         

2017
Rupees

3,633,514,205    
853,446,629       
32,826,537        
15,031,797         

4,534,819,168    

(20,558,044)       
(3,091,827)         

(23,649,871)       
4,511,169,297    

2017
Rupees

2,952,152,832    
94,297,725         
93,365,947        

457,392,541       
575,782,886       

7,789,773           
5,275,394          

11,647,906         
76,602,168        

4,274,307,172    

29,335,701         
(33,323,636)       
(3,987,935)         

4,270,319,237    

52,960,646        
(55,108,377)       

(2,147,731)         
4,268,171,506    

2017
Rupees

5,700,982
18,204,606
23,905,588        
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Note 29
Administrative Expenses

2018
Note Rupees

Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1 79,891,874
Printing and stationery 684,934
Communication 1,293,741
Travelling and conveyance 585,045
Repairs and maintenance 1,175,196
Vehicles' running and maintenance 7,232,743
Rent, rates and taxes 6,061,651
Insurance 2,220,217
Legal and professional charges 1,540,665
Fees and subscription 2,427,483
Utilities 10,169,632
Entertainment 4,846,935
Advertisement 397,557
Miscellaneous 620,533
Depreciation 16.4 11,128,532

130,276,738        

29.1 This includes Rs 5.098 million (2017: Rs. 5.098 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

Note 30
Finance Cost

2018
Rupees

Interest / mark-up on:

- Short term borrowings 39,133,199          
- Long term loans 5,918,936            

                    
45,052,135          

Bank charges and commission 7,032,217            
Commission on bank guarantees 1,016,013            

53,100,365          

Note 31
Other Operating Expenses

2018
Rupees

Auditors' remuneration
- Statutory audit 862,500              
- Limited scope review 100,000              
- Other attestation services 50,000                

1,012,500            
Provision for workers' (profit) participation fund 6,449,085            
Provision for workers' welfare fund 2,529,053            
Provision for further sales tax 18,820,314          
Loss on revaluation of short term investments at fair value through profit or loss -                     
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - Net 12,942,250          
Effect of change in shareholding percentage in associate (reclassified from OCI) -                     
Exchange loss -                     

41,753,202          
Note 32
Other Income

2018
Note Rupees

Exchange gain 429,345              
Profit on sale of raw material 891,000              
Fair value gain on remeasurement of short term investment 365,455              
Reversal of further sales tax 32.1 42,168,181
Gain on settlement of liabilities
Profit on term deposit receipts 108,699
Others 32.2 480,000

44,442,680          

2017
Rupees

71,674,906
674,382

1,003,566
1,835,632
1,612,606
6,619,119
4,267,706
2,221,260
1,285,165
2,786,015

11,148,726
4,025,463

204,270
357,378

11,537,692
121,253,886       

2017
Rupees

27,895,175         
1,371,193          

                   
29,266,368        
5,609,161          
1,044,604          

35,920,133        

2017
Rupees

862,500             
100,000             
50,000               

1,012,500          
3,450,221          
1,229,502          

42,164,181        
363,285             
848,026             
293,721             
249,778             

49,611,214        

2017
Rupees

-                    
373,153             

-

-
-

- 
13,965,673

 
432,000

14,770,826         



Note 32 , Other Income , cont...

32.1

32.2 This includes Rs. 0.480 million (2017: 0.432 million) on account of rental income from related party.

Note 33
Taxation

2018
Rupees

Current:
- Current period / year 67,774,490
- Prior years

- Adjustment on account of assessment / return 1,111,359
- Tax credits utilized (11,437,856)

(10,326,497)
57,447,993

Deferred (28,464,322)
28,983,671          

33.1  

33.2  Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Profit before taxation 101,183,252        

Tax @ 30% (2017: 31%) on profit before taxation 30,354,976          
Prior year tax charge 1,111,359            
Tax credits (BMR investment) (11,437,856)         
Tax effect of exports under final tax regime 4,951,078            
Tax effect on income taxed at reduced rate (12,026,271)         
Other adjustments 44,494,707          
Deferred tax (28,464,322)         

28,983,671          

Note 34
Cash Generated from Operations

2018
Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 101,183,252        

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation 109,210,310        
- Share of net profit of associate (40,087,570)         
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - Net 12,942,250          
- (Gain) / loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss (365,455)             
- Provision for staff retirement benefits 34,453,390          
- Exchange (gain) / loss (429,345)             
- Effect of change in shareholding percentage in associate (reclassified from OCI) -                     
- Provision for workers' (profit) participation fund 6,449,085            
- Provision for workers' welfare fund 2,529,053            
- Provision for further sales tax 18,820,314          
- Reversal of provision for further sales tax (42,168,181)         
- Gain on settlement of liabilities -                     
- Finance cost 45,052,135          

146,405,986        
Operating profit before working capital changes 247,589,238        

Decrease / (increase) in current assets:
- Stores and spares 12,498,016          
- Stock in trade (178,279,270)       
- Trade debts (10,013,281)         
- Advances, trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables (61,241,113)         
- Short term investments (7,254,087)           
- Tax refunds due from the Government 33,805,380          

The charge for taxation is based on minimum tax under section 113(c) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The provision recognized in previous year for further sales tax has been reversed on the basis of the final verdict issued by the Lahore High
Court, Lahore dated February 22, 2018 in favor of the Company. 

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables 113,946,203        

(96,538,152)         

Cash Generated from Operations 151,051,086        

2017
Rupees

46,435,705

18,212,317
 

18,212,317
64,648,022

(35,331,693)
29,316,329        

64,030,969        

19,849,600        
18,212,317        

-

-

                   
4,779,215          

(11,455,484)       
33,262,374        

(35,331,693)       
29,316,329        

2017
Rupees

64,030,969        

88,139,860        
(36,953,173)       

848,026             
363,285             

34,597,584         
249,778             
293,721             

3,450,221          
1,229,502          

42,164,181        
-                    

(13,965,673)       
29,266,368        

149,683,680       
213,714,649       

(22,383,872)       
(114,983,409)      
(46,945,878)       
15,764,468         

-                    
(36,204,494)       

2,742,990          

(202,010,195)     

11,704,454         
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Note 35
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

Long term financing      98,776,500                   -            (40,740,400)
Short term borrowings    406,846,544                   -             81,758,941 

Total liabilities from financing activities    505,623,044                   -             41,018,541 

Note 36
Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted 

2018
Rupees

Basic earning per share is based on

Net profit for the year attributable 
to ordinary shareholders Rupees 72,199,581          

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year Number 17,971,372          

Earnings per share - Basic Rupees 4.02                   

36.1 Diluted Earnings per Share 

Note 37
Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions during the year

Related party
Basis of 
Relationship

Aggregate 
Shareholding Nature of Transaction 2018

Rupees

Dividends income received 16,240,000          

Rent received from leasehold
land 480,000              

Purchase of materials, goods
and services 367,560              

Sale of materials, goods and
services 313,144              

Dividends paid 21,090                

Director Mark up charged on loan from -                     
director

Sargodha Jute Mills Limited (note 12 & 21) 134,992              

Director (note 13) Short term loan payable -                     

37.1

The related parties comprise associated companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. The Company in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. The Company enters into transactions with related parties on the basis of
mutually agreed terms. Significant balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

Sargodha Jute Mills Limited Associate

Balances outstanding as at June 30,

24.94%

There were no transactions with key management personnel other than undertaken as per terms of their employment that have been
disclosed in Note 38.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company has no such commitments that would result in
dilution of earnings of the Company.

 --------------------------------   Rupees ---------------------------------

As at June 30, 
2017

Non-cash 
changes

Cash flows

37.2 Sale and purchase transactions have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions under comparable uncontrolled price method.

There were no transactions with key management personnel other than undertaken as per terms of their employment that have been
disclosed in Note 38.

As at June 30, 
2018

         58,036,100 
       488,605,485 

       546,641,585 

2017
Rupees

34,714,640         

17,971,372         

1.93                  

2017
Rupees

10,150,000        

432,000             

396,100             

676,801             

-                    

2,110,946          

-                    

40,000,000        
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Note 38
Chief Executive's, Directors' and Executives' Remuneration
 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration 9,272,727         3,818,182         8,900,597         9,272,727         3,818,182         
Medical 927,273            381,818            890,059            927,273            381,818            
Bonus 475,063            195,801            335,829            -                   - -                  
Staff retirement benefits 850,000            350,000            690,622            850,000            350,000            

11,525,063       4,745,801         10,817,107       11,050,000       4,550,000         
Number of persons 1 1 4 1 1                     

38.1

38.2

38.3 No meeting fee has been paid during the year. 

Note 39
Segment Information

2018
Percentage

39.1 Information about products:
Yarn 99.10%

39.2 Major customers:
4 customers (2017: 4 customers) 53.78%

39.3

39.4 Geographical Information:

Company's revenue from external customers and geographical location is given as under:
2018

Pakistan 4,341,568         
Asia 997,260            
Europe  116,634            

5,455,462         

39.5 Details of Outstanding trade debts in respect of export sales are as follows:

Country
Amount 

Outstanding
Mode of Contract

China 31,182,860       Letters of Credit

In addition to above, Chief Executive, Director, and Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained vehicles in 
accordance with the Company's policy.

80% (2017: 81%) of sales of yarn are local sales whereas the remaining 20% (2017: 19%) sales are export / foreign sales.

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year as remuneration and benefits to chief executive, directors and
executives of the Company are as follows:

2018 2017
 Chief 

Executive 
 Directors  Executives 

 Chief 
Executive 

 Directors  Executives 

For management purposes, the activities of the Company are recognized into one operating segment, i.e. manufacturing and sales of yarn.
The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the nature of the product, risk and return, organizational and
management structure and internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial statements related to the
Company's only reportable segment. Entity-wide disclosures regarding reportable segment are as follows:

Rupees in thousand

An executive is defined as an employee, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a
financial year. Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per the Companies Act,
2017 (Previously, basic salary limit for executive was Rs. 500,000).

Total export sales made to 
debtors outstanding

------------------Rupees------------------

523,285,869                                

39.6 All non-current assets of the Company are located and operated in Pakistan as at the reporting date.

Rupees

11,830,157
1,183,015

968,444
13,981,616       

5

2017
Percentage

99.27%

54.10%

2017

3,666,341        
704,432           
149,014           

4,519,787        

 Executives 
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Note 40
Plant Capacity and Production

2018
Kilograms

Plant capacity converted into 20/S count based on 
three shifts per day for 365 days (2017: 365 days) 42,673,542

Actual production converted into 20/S count 40.1 39,667,532

40.1

Note 41
Financial Risk Management

41.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

2018

Trade debts            31,183 
Outstanding commitments against letters of credit             (4,610)
Net exposure            26,573 

Rupees per US Dollar

113.10           
121.40           

Sensitivity analysis

(ii) Price risk

Reasons attributable to under utilization of optimal production capacity are mainly due to various factors such as spindles' speed,
twist, maintenance of machinery, power shutdown, etc.  

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management,
as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). Currently, the Company's
foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts receivable from / payable to foreign entities. As at the balance
sheet date, the Company's exposure to currency risk was as follows:

Rupees in thousand

Average rate during the year reported
Reporting date rate 

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 1% against the USD with all other variables held 
constant, the impact on profit before taxation for the year would have been Rs. 3.12 million (2017: Rs. 0.2815 million)
respectively lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated
financial instruments. This sensitivity analysis reflects exposure as at reporting date and is unrepresentative of the exposure
during the year.

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in
the market. The Company is exposed to equity and commodity price risk in respect of short term investments carried at
market value. Following analysis shows the impact of change in equity and commodity price.

2017
Kilograms

42,673,542
38,191,592

2017

           34,249 
            (6,095)
           28,154 

103.68           
104.80           
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Note 41, Financial Risk Management - Contd…

2018

Change in commodity prices  (%) 1%
Effect on profit or loss account (Rupees) 84,401           

(iii) Interest rate risk

2018

Fixed rate instruments

Long term financing 98,777           

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings 488,605         

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

2018
Change in interest rates  (%) 1%

Effect on profit or loss account 
Short term borrowings (Rupees in thousand) 4,886             
Total effect on profit or loss account (Rupees in thousand) 4,886           

(b) Credit risk

2018

Long term deposits 14,070           
Trade debts 103,126         
Short term investments 8,440             
Trade deposits and other receivables 50,609           
Bank balances 104,042         

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing asset. The Company's interest rate risk arises from short term
borrowings. As the borrowings made at variable rates, these expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. As at the
balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Rupees in thousand

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Company's profit or loss account. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate
instruments outstanding at balance sheet dates were outstanding for the whole year.

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. Carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Rupees in thousand

Company exposure relating to credit risk relating to trade debt is disclosed in relevant notes to the financial statement. There
are no significant debtors that are past due as at the balance sheet date.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

2017

1%
8,205

2017

139,517

406,847

2017
1%

4,068             
4,068           

2017

13,970           
92,684           

821               
20,759           
59,708           
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Rating
Short term Long term Agency

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 51,196           
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 25,402           
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 3,256             
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 9,293             
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 11,932           
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 1,560             
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 112               
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 1,216             

103,967         
(c) Liquidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2018:

Long term financing 98,777          103,716        40,740        62,976           
Trade and other payables 351,671        351,671        351,671      -                
Unclaimed dividends 163,152        163,152        163,152      -                
Unpaid dividends 199,348        199,348        199,348      -                
Accrued interest 12,450          12,450         12,450       -                
Short term borrowings 488,605        531,114        531,114      -                

1,314,003     1,361,451     1,298,475   62,976           

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2017:

Long term financing 139,517        146,493        40,740        105,753         
Trade and other payables 263,020        263,020        263,020      -                
Unclaimed dividends 242,454        242,454        242,454      -                
Unpaid dividends 173,749        173,749        173,749      -                
Accrued interest 8,631           8,631           8,631         -                
Short term borrowings 406,847        442,243        442,243      -                

1,234,218     1,276,590     1,170,837   105,753         

(d) Fair value of financial instruments

Rating
2018

Rupees in thousand

Carrying 
Amount

Within 1 
year

2-5 Years

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities. As at the balance sheet date, the Company had Rs. 1,532.76 million (2017: 2,062 million) worth
unavailed short term borrowing limits available (both funded and unfunded) from financial institutions and Rs. 104.79 million
(2017: Rs. 60.34 million) cash and bank balances. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments. 

Contractual 
cash flows

---------- Rupees in thousand ----------

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Within 1 
year

2-5 Years

---------- Rupees in thousand ----------

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark
up rates effective as at June 30,2018. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial
statements.

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair value estimates.

25,945
12,185

                528 
           12,199 

2,424             
4,822             

112               
1,493             

59,708           

-                
-                
-                
-                
-                
-                
-                

-                
-                
-                
-                
-                
-                
-                

2017

More than 5 
years

More than 5 
years

As at June 30, 2018 the net fair value of all financial assets and financial liabilities are estimated to approximate their carrying
values.



Note 41, Financial Risk Management - Contd…

Level 1 Quoted market prices
Level 2 Valuation techniques (market observable)
Level 3 Valuation techniques (non market observable)

41.2 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as at June 30, 2018

Long term deposits -               14,070         -            -                
Short term investments -               -              8,440         -                
Trade debts -               103,126        -            -                
Trade deposits and other receivables -               50,609         -            -                
Cash and bank balances 104,794        -              -            -                

104,794        167,805        8,440         -                

Financial assets as at June 30, 2017

Long term deposits -               13,970         -            -                
Short term investments -               -              821            -                
Trade debts -               92,684         -            -                
Trade deposits and other receivables -               20,759         -            -                
Cash and bank balances 60,340          -              -            -                

60,340          127,413        821            -                

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
2018

Long term financing 98,777           
Trade and other payables 351,671         
Unclaimed dividends 163,152         
Unpaid dividends 199,348         
Accrued mark-up 12,450           
Short term borrowings 488,605         

1,314,003      

41.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

---------- Rupees in thousand ----------

 Cash and 
Cash 

Equivalents 

 Loans and 
advances 

 Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss 

 Held for 
trading 

 Cash and 
Cash 

Equivalents 

 Loans and 
advances 

 Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss 

 Held for 
trading 

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the balance sheet date.
The fair values of all other financial assets and liabilities are not considered to be significantly different from their carrying
values.

The Company classifies the financial instruments measured in the balance sheet at fair value in accordance with the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

---------- Rupees in thousand ----------

Rupees in thousand

Carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate to their fair values. Fair value
is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

14,070
8,690

103,126
50,609

104,794
281,039         

13,970           
821               

92,684           
20,759           
60,340           

188,574         

2017

139,517         
263,020         
242,454         
173,749         

8,631             
406,847         

1,234,218      

 Total 

 Total 

SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED60

Annual Report 2018



Note 42
Capital Risk Management

2018
Note

Total borrowings 9 & 13 587,382         
Cash and bank balances (104,794)        
Net Debt 482,588         
Equity 2,113,308      
Total capital employed 2,595,896       

Gearing Ratio 18.59%

42.1

Note 43
Number of Employees

Mills Mills
Number Number Number Number

Employees as at the year end 32                2,143           6               140               
Average employees during the year 32                2,096           6               137               

Mills Mills
Number Number Number Number

Employees as at the year end 31                2,016           5               125               
Average employees during the year 31                1,995           5               125               

Note 44
Provident Fund Related Disclosures

Note 45
Authorization of Financial Statements

While managing capital, the objectives of the Company are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern assumption, enhances
shareholders' wealth and meets stakeholders' expectations. The Company ensures its sustainable growth viz. maintaining optimal capital
structure, keeping its finance cost low, exercising the option of issuing right shares or repurchasing shares, if possible, selling surplus
property, plant and equipment without affecting the optimal production and operating level and regulating its dividend payout thus
maintaining smooth capital management. 

In line with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity as
shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

As at the balance sheet date, the gearing ratio of the Company was as under:

These financial statements were authorized for issuance on  September 26, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

2017
Permanent Contractual

Total
Head office Head office

Contractual
Total

Head office

The Company does not maintain any provident fund for its employees.

Head office

Equity for the year ended June 30, 2017 has been restated due to inclusion of revaluation surplus as detailed in note 5.

Rupees in thousand

2018
Permanent

2017

(Restated)

546,363         
(60,340)          
486,023         

1,752,012      
2,238,035      

21.72%

Number
2,321             
2,271             

Number
2,177             
2,156             

Total

Total
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Note 46
General

Nature

Unclaimed dividends Trade and other payables Unclaimed dividends
(Note 12) (face of the statement of financial 

position)

Unpaid dividends Trade and other payables Unpaid dividends
(Note 12) (face of the statement of financial 

position)

From To

Comparative figures are re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison. In addition to restatements discussed in
note 5, the following re-arrangements / reclassifications have been made in these financial statements for better presentation:

2017
Amount
(Rupees)

242,454         

173,749         

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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No. of Share Holding  Total 

Shareholders From To  Share Held 
     

467 1 100  11,527 
224 101 500  53,532 

35 501 1,000  23,570 
35 1,001 5,000  71,620 

2 5,001 10,000  15,900 
1 10,001 15,000  14,580 
2 15,001 20,000  35,061 
1 20,001 25,000  21,090 
2 35,001 40,000  76,303 
1 95,001 100,000  96,883 
1 265,001 270,000  265,553 
1 270,001 275,000  272,374 
2 295,001 300,000  600,000 
1 430,001 435,000  432,131 
2 495,001 500,000  1,000,000 
1 76,0001 765,000  760,382 
1 1,105,001 1,110,000  1,105,907 
1 1,680,001 1,685,000  1,682,217 
1 2,495,001 2,500,000  2,500,000 
2 4,465,001 4,470,000  8,932,742 

783 Total   17,971,372 
     

 
5. Categories of Shareholders Shares Held  Percentage 
    
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children  13,141,099 73.12 
    
5.2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 1,021,090 5.68 
    
5.3 NIT and ICP 9,310 0.05 
    
5.4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial 

Institutions, 
2,200 0.01 

    
5.5 Insurance Companies 600 0.00 
    
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 122 0.00 
    
5.7 Share Holding 10 %  or more 13,875,341 77.21 
    
5.8 General Public   
    
 a. Local 3,791,273 21.09 
 b. Foreign - - 
    
5.9 Others (Securities & Joint Stock Companies) 5,178 0.03 
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S.# Particular Shares Held Percentage 

    
1) Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 

 
  

 i) Sargodha Jute Mills Limited 21,090 0.11 
 ii)Mrs. Saima Hassan 500,000 2.78 
 iii)Sadaf Parvez 500,000 2.78 
    
  1,021,090 5.67     

2) Mutual Funds       
 i) Golden Arrow Selected Stock Fund Limited 122 0.00 
    

3) Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their Spouse and Minor 
Childern 

  

 i) Mian Parvez Aslam                   -Director 2,500,000 13.91 
 ii) Mr. Imran Aslam                      -Chief Executive Officer 4,466,371 24.85 
 iii) Mr. Irfan Aslam                      -Director 4,466,371 24.85 
 iv) Mr. Ahsan Ahmad Khan         -Director 650 0.00 
 v) Syed Raza Ali Bokhari            -Director 500 0.00 
 vi) Mr. Humayun Bakht               -Director 650 0.00 
 vii) Mr. Maqsood Shahid Najmi  -Director 650 0.00 
 viii) Mrs. Nazish Imran                -Spouse 300,000 1.66 
 ix) Mrs. Sara Irfan                        -Spouse 300,000 1.66 
 xi) Mrs. Fakhra Parvez                 -Spouse 1,105,907 6.15 
  13,141,099 73.11 
    

4) Executives 500 0.00 
    

5) Public Sector Companies and Corporations 9,310 0.05 
        

6) Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial   
 Institutions, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension   

 Funds 2,800 0.02 
    
  7) Individuals and Joint Stock Companies 3,796,451 21.13 
    
 TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES 17,971,372 100.00 
    

8) Shareholders Holding Five Percent or More Voting Rights       
 Mian Parvez Aslam 2,500,000 13.91 
 Mian Shahzad Aslam 2,442,599 13.59 
 Mr. Imran Aslam 4,466,371 24.85 
 Mr. Irfan Aslam 4,466,371 24.85 
 Mrs. Fakhra Parvez 1,105,907 6.15     

 
Detail of Purchase / Sales / Gifts of Shares by Directors/CEO/Company Secretary/CFO and Their Spouses 
/Minor Children during 2018. 
1755400 shares were gifted by Mian Parvez Aslam  
876893 shares were received as gift by Mr. Imran Aslam 
878507 shares were received as gift by Mr. Irfan Aslam 
 No other trades were carried out by other directors, executives, and their spouses and minor children. 



IRFAN ASLAM
DIRECTOR
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I/We    Son / Daughter / Wife of           being a member  
 
Of SHAHZAD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED and holder of                Shares Folio  
 
No.       CDC Participant ID #                         and 

 
Sub Account #    do hereby appoint               of or failing   
 
him /her       of                 as my/our proxy to 

attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Shahzad Textile Mills Limited 

scheduled to be held on Saturday October 27, 2018 at 12:30 p.m at 19-A, Off. Zafar Ali Road, Gulberg-V, Lahore and at any 

adjournment thereof. 
 
As witness my/our hands this      day of         2018. 
   

1. Witnesses: 
  

Name:          
 
Signature:        
         
CNIC:        

 
Address:        

 
            

2. Witnesses: 
  

Name:        Shareholder’s Folio No.     
 
Signature        CDC A/c No.     

  
CNIC:        CNIC:     

  
Address:        Address:      

 
Notes: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy. 
 
2.  Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office, 19-A, Off. Zafar Ali Road, 

Gulberg-V, Lahore, not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, 
signed and witnessed. 
 

3. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in circular # 1, dated 
26th January, 2000 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 
 
i)  In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose securities and their registration 

details are uploaded as per the Regulations shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement. 
 
ii) 
 
iii) 

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.
 

In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatures of the proxy 
 holder shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. 

Please affix here Revenue 
Stamp of Rs. 5/- 

 
 

Members’ Signature 
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IMPORTANT NOTICE

Dear Valued Shareholder(s) 
 
Section 242 of Companies Act 2017 and Circular No. 18/2017 dated August 01, 2017 
issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has directed all 
listed Companies to pay dividend only throuth electronic mode directly into the Bank 
Accounts designated by the entitled shareholders with effect form November 01, 2017. 
 
In view of above, you are advised to provide you complete Bank Account / IBAN 
detail as per format given below to Shahzad Textile Mills Limited 19-A, Off. Zafar Ali 
Road, Gulberg-V, Lahore (in case of CDC Account Holder / Sub Account Holders 
please provide said details to respective member Stock Exchange) enabling us to 
comply with above Section / Circular. 
 
 
 
 
      HASSAN-UD-DIN ANSARI 
           Company Secretary 
  
 
DIVIDEND MANDATE DETIAL 
 
 
Folio Number  

Name of Shareholder  

Title of Bank Account  

Bank Account Number (Complete)  

Bank’s Name Branch Name, Code 
And Address 

 

Cell Number  

Landline Number, if any  

CNIC Number (also attaché copy)  

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct, that Iwill intimate the 
changes in the above mentioned information to the Company. 
 
 
                                                                                         ________________ 
                                                                                      Shareholder’s Signature 
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REQUEST FORM  
Consent for Circulation of Annual Audited Financial Statements through e-mail 
Company Name: Shahzad Textile Mills Limited  
Folio No. / CDC Sub -Account No. ____________________________________ 
E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________ 
CNIC No. ________________________________________________________ 
 
The above e-mail address will be recorded in the members register maintained 
under Section 120 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
I will inform the Company or the Registrar about any change in my e-mail 
address immediately. Henceforth, I will receive the Audited Financial 
Statements along with Notice only on the above e-mail address, unless a hard 
copy has been specifically requested by me. 

Name and Signature of Shareholder 
(Attachment Copy of CNIC)  
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